
 
 

 
 

Listing of Mailout Material 
June 21, 2023 

 Cover Memo 
 Meeting Agenda 

 
I. Review and approve minutes of the meeting of May 17, 2023 

 Minutes of May 17, 2023 
 

II. Summary of Performance Review of Barry Fick 
 

III. St. Catherine University 
 Preliminary Financing Plan 
 Moody’s Credit Opinion 
 Resolution Relating to Financing Terms  
 Series Resolution  

 
IV. FY2024 Administrative Items 

 FY2024 Proposed Budget 
 FY2024 Annual Fee Analysis 

 
V. Old Business 

 
VI. New Business 

 
VII. Other Business 

 “Creative Planning acquires BerganKDV” 
 “A look at trends in college consolidation since 2016” 
 Budget vs Actual (May 2023) 

 



MEMORANDUM   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Date:  14 June 2023 
 
To:  Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority Board Members 
 
From:  Barry W. Fick, Executive Director 
 
Subject: June 21, 2023, Authority Board Meeting Preview 
 
The focus of the June 2023 Board meeting will be to consider Finance Plan and Series Resolutions 
for St. Catherine University. The Public Hearings and Application Reviews for the University were 
held at the April Board meeting.  
 
St. Catherine University has applied for Financing to assist them with the renovation, furnishing, 
repurposing, reconstruction, and updating a number of academic and administrative buildings on 
their Saint Paul campus. These Projects are part of St. Catherine’s strategic plan.  
 
The Municipal Advisor representing St. Catherine University and MHEFA will be present to discuss 
the Finance Plan and answer questions. Bond Counsel for the financing will attend and speak to the 
Series Resolution and any other legal items for the financing. 
 
We will also elect officers for the FY2024 year and provide you with an update of Authority activity 
since our last meeting, including the Executive Director’s Report. 
 
We encourage in-person participation at the meeting, but if you are unable to attend in person, our 
video link system will be operating for this meeting. Instructions for accessing the video link are 
available with your Agenda materials. 

860 BLUE GENTIAN ROAD, SUITE 145, EAGAN, MN  
55121 

           



General Public may attend in-person at the address below,  
via call-in number:  1-877-978-6969   Access Code: 190-781-108#  

or through this link: https://www.gomeet.com/190-781-108 
 

MHEFA, 860 Blue Gentian Road, Lower Level Conference Room, Eagan, MN 55121 

 

Board Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, June 21, 2023 

2:00 PM 
Location: MHEFA Office 

 
Individuals may request reasonable accommodation or modifications in order to participate in Authority programs by 

contacting the Authority at least 48 hours in advance of the event. 

 

I. Review and approve minutes of the meeting of May 17, 2023 

II. Summary of Performance Review of Barry Fick 

III. St. Catherine University 

 Preliminary Financing Plan – North Slope – Municipal Advisor 
 Resolution Relating to Financing Terms – Taft – Bond Counsel 
 Series Resolution – Taft – Bond Counsel 

IV. FY2024 Administrative Items 

 FY2024 Proposed Budget 
 FY2024 Annual Fee Analysis 
 FY2024 Board Officer Elections 

V. Old Business          

VI. New Business        

VII. Other Business 

 Executive Director’s Report 



 

The Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority (the “Authority” or “MHEFA”) convened a 
Special Board meeting at 2:00 pm Central Daylight Time, Wednesday, May 17, 2023.  
 
The Board is conducting this meeting subject to the Open Meeting Law by in-person, telephone, and 
interactive technology as allowed by Minnesota Statutes. Members participating in the meeting can 
hear each other and all discussion; members of the public can hear all discussion and votes; and all 
votes are conducted by a roll call. The board has made provision for the public to monitor the 
meeting electronically from a remote location. The board has provided notice of the meeting 
location, the fact that some members may participate by interactive technology, and of the public’s 
right to monitor the meeting electronically from a remote location.  

The Authority Board meeting was held in the lower-level Conference Room at 860 Blue Gentian 
Road, Eagan, MN 55121. Executive Director Fick was physically present. Mr. Fick meets the state’s 
requirement for COVID-19 safety through vaccination, including boosters. The location and time of 
the meeting was duly published and posted on the Authority website and the door of the Authority 
office. 

The public was able to attend the meeting in person, monitor the meeting by calling a toll-free 
number, and able to connect to the meeting using the video link. 
 
Board members participated in the meeting in-person and by using a video link. The meeting link was 
sent to Board members prior to the meeting. The use of a video link as an allowable way to hold the 
Board meeting was confirmed by the State of Minnesota’s Data Practices Office staff prior to the 
meeting, following Minnesota Statute 13D.015. Board Chair Gary Benson attended in-person, 
meeting the non-pandemic requirements of one member attending in-person. 
 
  



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 2 
 
 
Executive Summary – Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Meeting on May 17, 2023: Board Actions Taken: 

Motions: Result: Vote: 
Approval of Meeting Minutes of April 26, 2023 Passed Unanimous 
Adopt the Adjusted FY23 MHEFA Budget Passed Unanimous 
Adopt the FY24 Board Meeting Schedule Passed Unanimous 

 

Resolutions Result: Vote: 
Approve Series Resolution Relating to the Minneapolis College of 
Art and Design Series 2023 Note 

Passed Unanimous 

Approve Resolution 05-2023-02 relating to the Managerial Plan 
2021-2023 for Achievement Awards 2022-2023 for Authority 
Staff 

Passed Unanimous 

 
The official meeting began with a roll call to determine who was attending the meeting. The following 
board members or their designees were participating and attending in-person (IP), by video link 
(“V”) or telephone (“T”): 
 
Board Members: Gary Benson - IP 
   Bonnie Anderson Rons - IP 
   Mary Ives – V 
   David Rowland - IP 

Mary Thao – V 
Paul Cerkvenik - IP 

   
Absent:  Mikeya Griffin 
   Nancy Sampair 
   Ray Vin Zant 
   Poawit Yang 
 
Other Attendees: Mark LeMay, Public – IP 
 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 3 
 
 
MCAD related: Maxwell (Max) Wilkinson, Blue Rose – MA – V 
   Justin Kreig, Blue Rose – MA- IP 
   Bob Toftey, Bond Counsel – T 
 
Staff:  Barry W. Fick, Executive Director, MHEFA – IP 

Amanda Lee, Operations Manager, MHEFA – IP 
 

Gary Benson, Chair, called the meeting order at 2:00 pm CDT. Executive Director Fick confirmed 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Agenda Item I – Minutes of the April 26, 2023, Board meeting. 
 
The first item on the agenda is the review and consideration of the minutes of the April 26, 2023, 
Authority Board meeting. Bonnie Anderson Rons and Mary Thao noted changes on pages 3 and 7. 
 
Chair Benson asked for a motion to accept and approve the April 26, 2023 Minutes with changes 
noted by Ms. Rons and Ms. Thao. A motion was made by Mary Ives to approve the April 26, 2023, 
minutes. The motion was seconded by Bonnie Anderson Rons. Chair Benson asked if there were any 
questions, discussion, or further changes to the minutes of the April 26, 2023, Board meeting.  
 
There were no further questions or proposed changes to the minutes from Board members.  
 
Chair Benson called for a vote regarding the approval of the minutes. A roll call vote was conducted, 
and the Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 

David Rowland   Yes 
Mary Thao   Yes 
Mary Ives   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the Minutes of the April 26, 2023, MHEFA Board 
meetings were approved. 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 4 
 
 
Agenda Item II – Minneapolis College of Art and Design (MCAD) Finance Plan and Series 
Resolution 
 
Chair Benson asked Mr. Justin Krieg and Max Wilkinson, both of Blue Rose Capital Advisors, serving 
as financial advisor to Minneapolis College of Art and Design (MCAD), to discuss the proposed 
financing plan. The financing is to fund MCAD’s acquisition, renovation, furnishing, and refurbishing 
of an existing apartment building adjacent to the MCAD Minneapolis campus. Acquisition of the 
property is an integral part of MCAD’s plan to require first year students to reside in campus 
housing.  
 
The financing for the proposed Series 2023 Note is to be provided by Alerus Financial. They 
provided financing for the most recent prior MCAD borrowings through the Authority.  
 
Mr. Krieg noted that the terms of the 2023 financing will be similar to the terms of the prior 
financings. Mr. Krieg referred Board members to a letter from Blue Rose Capital Advisors outlining 
the MCAD financing terms. The Series 2023 financing will be separated into two Notes. Series 
2023A Note will fund the acquisition of the building that will serve as a residence hall for the 
College. It will be secured by a mortgage on the residence hall. The Series 2023B Note will fund a 
portion of the cost of the residence hall, due diligence costs, start-up expenses, and other project 
related costs of the building acquisition. The Series 2023B Note will be secured by a mortgage on 
certain college properties and investment securities pledged by the College as security, as necessary. 
The initial interest rate on the Notes will be set according to a formula agreed to between the 
College and the Bank. The Series 2023B Note may be prepaid at any time, in whole or in part, 
without penalty. The Series 2023B Note may be prepaid at any time but is subject to a declining 
pre-payment penalty that expires on June 1, 2028, when the College may prepay the Series 2023A 
Note without penalty. 
 
Both Notes are subject to mandatory tender prior to their final maturity. On or before the 
mandatory tender date, the College and the Bank have the option to extend the bank commitment 
period. In addition, the College has the option to repay the note in full on or before the mandatory 
tender date. On the mandatory tender date, the College may choose to repay the note and 
refinance the Notes with a different lender.  The mandatory tender rate of the Series 2023A Note is 
October 1, 2030. The mandatory tender date of the Series 2023B Note is October 1, 2028. 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 5 
 
 
Mr. Krieg and Mr. Wilkinson noted that the College continues to be subject to financial covenants 
under the Series 2023A and 2023B Notes which are similar to the financial covenants in place with 
outstanding Alerus loans to the College. The primary differences include an increased minimum 
liquidity requirement of $5 Million and a new Pledged Portfolio test, which would require the 
College to maintain an 85% Loan to Value ratio and the College could pledge additional collateral 
ore repay principal to maintain the Loan to Value ratio. Mr. Krieg and Mr. Wilkinson concluded their 
presentation and asked if there were any questions about the finance plan for MCAD. 
 
Chair Benson also asked if there were questions for the Blue Rose representatives. There were a 
number of questions related to the project and options that were considered by MCAD. Mr. Krieg 
and Mr. Wilkinson provided answers to the questions from the Board that were responsive to Board 
member questions. After the questions and answers period was concluded, Chair Benson closed the 
Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Benson next called on Mr. Robert Toftey, Bond Counsel with the Fryberger Law Firm, to 
discuss the Series Resolution for MCAD. Mr. Toftey reviewed the Bond Counsel’s Series Resolution 
Private Placement Program Resolution and memorandum, noting various items relating to tax law 
and highlighting a number of items that are pertinent to the financing.  
 
Mr. Toftey noted that the Series Resolution includes the following elements: 
 
Recites the basic terms of the Finance Plan and approves the Finance Plan 
Recites the documents related to the Series 2023 Notes 
Recites prior actions taken by the Authority Board related to the Series 2023 Notes 
Recites the authorization of the Authority to issue the Notes 
Approves and authorizes execution of all required documents related to the Notes 
Approves terms of the Notes and authorizes delivery of the Notes 
Ratifies prior actions of the Authority related to the Notes 
 
Mr. Toftey concluded his presentation and asked if there were any questions. There were no 
questions related to the Series Resolution.  
 
At the conclusion of Mr. Toftey’s presentation, Chair Benson asked if there were any questions for 
Mr. Toftey regarding the Series Resolution. There were no questions. 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 6 
 
 
A motion was made by David Rowland to approve the Series Resolution relating to the Series 
2023A and Series 2023B Notes for MCAD. The motion to approve the Resolution was seconded 
by Bonnie Anderson Rons. 
 
Chair Benson called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Series 
Resolution related to the Series 2023A and Series 2023B Notes for MCAD. A Roll Call vote was 
conducted, and the Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 

David Rowland   Yes 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
Mary Ives   Yes 
Mary Thao   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the Series Resolution Relating to the Series 2023A and 
Series 2023B Notes for Minneapolis College of Art and Design was approved. 
 
Agenda Item III – St. Catherine University Financing 
 
Executive Director Fick informed the Board that consideration of the next step for the St. 
Catherine financing will be deferred and considered at a future meeting, it is anticipated that the 
financing will be brought before the Board in June or July 2023. No Board action related to the St. 
Catherine financing is necessary at this time. 
 
Agenda Item IV – FY2023 Administrative Items 
 
FY2023 proposed Budget Adjustment 
 
Chair Benson asked Operations Manager Amanda Lee to present and review the proposed FY23 
Adjusted Budget. Operations Manager Lee noted that the Board annually reviews the current fiscal 
year budget and updates it to reflect changes to both revenue and expenses. For FY23, revenues will 
be lower than originally budgeted due to changes in the timing of financing requests from borrowers. 
Interest income will be higher than projected due to higher rates on reinvested Certificates of 
Deposit. 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 7 
 
 
For expenses, most expense items are favorable to budget, with only one unanticipated expense item 
being incurred. 
 
On balance, the net results projected for FY23 are $7,700 less favorable than originally budgeted.  
 
Chair Benson asked if there were questions for Operations Manager Lee about the updated FY23 
Budget. Board members asked about certain line items and the timing of borrower financing 
applications. The Board questions were answered to the satisfaction of the Board. 
 
Chair Benson asked for a motion to adopt the Adjusted FY23 Budget. A motion was made by David 
Rowland to approve the Adjusted FY23 Budget. The motion to approve the Resolution was seconded 
by Mary Ives. 
 
Chair Benson called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Adjusted FY23 
Budget. A Roll Call vote was conducted, and the Board members voted as follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 

David Rowland   Yes 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
Mary Ives   Yes 
Mary Thao   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the Adjusted FY23 Budget was approved. 
 
FY2023 Plan of Action Results 
 
Chair Benson asked Executive Director Fick and Operations Manager Amanda Lee to present the 
FY2023 Plan of Action Results. Executive Director Fick and Operations Manager Lee reviewed the 
components of the FY2023 Plan of Action and noted that 16 of the 17 Plan of Action items were 
fully completed and only 1 item was not fully completed. All of the other components were fully 
completed and in the case of the Annual Conference, the Authority successfully executed 2 
conferences in FY2023.   
 
Chair Benson asked if there were any questions related to the FY2023 Plan of Action Results. There 
were no questions from Board members or the public related to the FY203 Plan of Action Results. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 8 
 
 
 
FY2023 Achievement Award Consideration 
 
Chair Benson asked Executive Director Fick and Operations Manager Amanda Lee to present the 
FY2023 Achievement Award Resolution. Executive Director Fick and Operations Manager Lee 
reviewed the components of the FY2023 Achievement Award Resolution, noting that the 
Achievement Award is not automatically granted, but must be earned based on defined criteria. The 
Authority bases the award on how staff meets the FY Plan of Action. The award Resolution for 
FY2023 allocates the Achievement Award equally between the Executive Director and the 
Operations Manager. Staff requests the Board consider the proposed Achievement Award 
resolution. 
 
Chair Benson asked if there were any questions related to the proposed FY2023 Achievement 
Award Resolution. There were no questions. 
 
A motion was made by Bonnie Anderson Rons to approve the Achievement Awards Resolution. The 
motion to approve the Resolution was seconded by David Rowland. 
 
Chair Benson called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval and acceptance of the Resolution for 
Achievement Awards 2022-2023. A Roll Call vote was conducted, and the Board members voted as 
follows:  
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 

David Rowland   Yes 
Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 
Mary Ives   Yes 
Mary Thao   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the FY2023 Achievement Awards were approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 9 
 
 
Agenda Item V – Administrative Items 
 
FY2024 Plan of Action 
 
Board Chair Benson asked Executive Director Fick to present the FY2024 Plan of Action. 
Executive Director Fick noted that the FY2024 Plan of Action continued to focus on the Authority 
Borrowers and meeting their needs as a primary focus. New focus areas for FY2024 include 
expanded DEI efforts and development of a long-term succession plan along with updated Position 
Descriptions for Authority staff. The FY2024 Plan of Action includes continuing and expanded 
national exposure for the Authority to keep on the leading edge of industry trends and events for the 
benefit of Authority Borrowers. 
 
Chair Benson asked if there were questions from Board members about the FY2024 Plan of Action. 
There were no questions. 
 
FY2024 Proposed Board Meeting Schedule 
 
The next item for consideration was the FY2024 proposed Board Meeting Schedule. The policy of 
the Authority is to hold Board meetings on the 3rd Wednesday of the month, beginning at 2:00 pm 
Central time. If there is no business for the Board to consider, the meeting may be cancelled with 
adequate notice. Chair Benson asked Operations Manager Lee to outline the proposed FY2024 
Board meeting schedule. Operations Manager Lee noted there are no holiday date conflicts in 
FY2024. That is, there are no meetings that fall during a holiday week. The proposed FY2024 
meeting schedule includes a Board recognition at the October 18, 2023 meeting and the annual 
Authority Finance Conference at the April 17, 2024 meeting. 
 
The Board discussed the timing of the FY2024 meetings and opted to leave all meetings on the 3rd 
Wednesday of the month, reserving the option to cancel or move any meeting at a later date. 
 
Mr. Benson, as Board Chair, asked for a motion to adopt the FY2024 Board Meeting Schedule. A 
motion to approve the schedule was made by Bonnie Anderson Rons. The motion was seconded by 
David Rowland. 
 
Chair Benson called for a Roll Call vote regarding the approval of the FY2024 Meeting Schedule. A 
Roll Call vote was conducted, and the Board members voted as follows:  



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 10 
 
 
 
Board Members: Gary Benson   Yes 
   Bonnie Anderson Rons  Yes 

David Rowland   Yes 
Mary Ives   Yes 
Mary Thao   Yes 
 

There were no votes against the motion and the FY2024 Board Meeting Schedule was approved. 
 
Chair Benson called on Operations Manager Lee to discuss FY2024 Board Officer Elections. 
Operations Manager Lee discussed the current Officer positions and noted that staff will be 
contacting Board members prior to the June Authority meeting to determine interest in serving as a 
MHEFA Board officer. A slate of officers will be prepared based on discussion with current officers 
and potential board officers. The slate of Board officers will be presented and voted on at the June 
Authority meeting. 
 
Agenda Item VI – Old Business 
 
Chair Benson asked if there were any Old Business items from Board members for discussion.  
 
There were no Old Business items from staff or from Board members for discussion. 
 
Agenda Item VII – New Business 
 
Chair Benson asked if there were any New Business items from Board members for discussion.  
 
There were no New Business items from Board members for discussion.  
 
Agenda Item VIII – Other Business 
 
Chair Benson called upon Executive Director Fick to discuss Other Business. Mr. Fick presented his 
Executive Director’s report. It included the following items regarding staff and Authority activity and 
events and personnel changes at the schools. 
 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 11 
 
 
Legislative Update 
 
Our efforts in the 2023 Legislative session were stymied by questions raised by the House Health 
Care Chair regarding the University of Minnesota’s ability to use the Authority to issue debt and by 
questions related to for profit healthcare to access Authority financing. The answer is that neither 
the U of MN nor for profit healthcare can access Authority financing, but the uncertainty was 
sufficient to defer consideration by the House Health Committee of our bill. We plan to meet with 
legislators and their staff over the summer to provide additional information and education on the 
purpose and application of our bill, with the plan to introduce the bill again in the 2024 legislative 
session. Our bill was approved by the Senate and House Higher Education Committees, the Local 
Government Committees of the Senate and House and the Senate Healthcare Committee.  

We hope to retain the same sponsors and add additional sponsors, both Democratic and Republican.  
 
Rating Agency Update 
 

• Moody’s Investors Service has lost an Analyst from the Minnesota Higher Education team 
and will add another analyst this summer 

• Executive Director Fick will meet with Moody’s staff in NYC this summer to address the 
higher education analysts, discuss Moody’s staffing plans, rating updates for 2023, and 
record a Podcast 

 
Borrower Assistance and Financing Application Update 

• We are engaged in preliminary discussions with four schools about financing projects in the 
calendar year 2023, which includes the Fiscal Year 2023 and the first ½ of the Authority’s 
FY2024 

• We continue collaborating with multiple schools on Moody’s rating updates for this summer 
• We completed compliance with Continuing Disclosure obligations for FY23 

 

Borrower Staffing Update 

No additional updates since April 

 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 12 
 
 
Various 

The Conference sponsored by the SEC was very successful. I again met with the head of the SEC 
Office of Municipal Securities, other OMS staff and a number of attorneys and regulatory staff for 
the first time since Covid. 

Executive Director Fick will be attending the GFOA National Conference in Portland, OR next 
week where he is speaking on a number of panels. 

 
Chair Benson asked Paul Cerkvenik, President of the Minnesota Private College Council and ex-
officio MHEFA Board member, to provide background information to the Board about the new 
State of Minnesota Public College tuition program. Mr. Cerkvenik outlined the basic rules of the 
new program, noting it is based on income and is a “last dollar” aid, to be used after all other federal 
and state aid programs have been accessed. Executive Director Fick referred Board members to two 
news articles about the new program that were included in the Board information packet for May 
2023. Mr. Cerkvenik noted it will be some time before the effect and impact of the new program 
will be known. Mr. Fick noted that the program is one of many factors that the Minnesota private 
institutions of higher education consider in their budgets. 
 
Chair Benson asked Operations Manager Lee to discuss the Budget vs. Actual Report for the period 
from January 1, 2023 through April 30, 2023. Operations Manager Lee noted that a number of the 
variances in the Budget vs. Actual report were modified in the revised FY23 Budget adopted earlier 
in the May 2023 Board meeting. Expenses for the fiscal year-to-date are generally lower than 
projected and revenues will be lower than projected due to timing of Authority bonds issued for 
borrowers which will occur in FY24 rather than FY23 as originally projected.  
 
Chair Benson asked if there was any Other Business to come before the Board. There was no Other 
Business for the Board to consider, and Chair Benson asked for a motion to adjourn the regular 
Board Meeting And move to closed session. The purpose of the closed session is to evaluate the 
performance of the Executive Director. The motion to adjourn the Board meeting and go into closed 
session was made by Mary Ives and seconded by Bonnie Anderson Rons. 
 
Chair Benson called for a voice vote regarding the adjournment of the regular meeting and moving 
to closed session. A Voice vote was conducted, and the Board members voted to adjourn the regular 
meeting at 3:45 pm Central Time and move to closed session to conduct a performance evaluation 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Board Meeting Minutes of May 17, 2023 

Page 13 
 
 
of the Executive Director of the Authority. The Board asked Mr. Fick to excuse himself from the 
Closed Session. 
 
During the Executive Session, the Board discussed Mr. Fick’s self-assessment, added performance 
feedback, and approved submission of Mr. Fick’s performance review with a rating of outstanding. 
After their discussion, the Board asked Mr. Fick to return to the meeting. Chair Benson spoke for 
the Board and noted that the Board agreed with Mr. Fick’s self-assessment. The Board rated his 
performance “outstanding.” 
 
Chair Benson asked if there was any other business to come before the closed session. There was 
none. 
 
Board Chair Benson asked for a motion to adjourn the closed session of the Board meeting. The 
motion to adjourn was made by Bonnie Anderson Rons and the second provided by David Rowland. 
The Board acted by voice vote to adjourn the closed session at 4:15 pm, Central Daylight Time. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
       ____________________ 
       Assistant Secretary  



  
North Slope Capital Advisors 

2000 S. Colorado Blvd 
Tower 1, Suite 2000-412 

Denver, CO 80222 
303-953-4101 

 
   

 
 
June 21, 2023 
 
 
Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
c/o Mr. Gary D. Benson, Board Chair 
 and Mr. Barry W. Fick, Executive Director 
860 Blue Gentian Road, Suite 145 
Eagan, MN 55121 
 
Dear Chair Benson, Mr. Fick, and Authority Board Members: 
 
As the independent registered municipal advisor for St. Catherine University (the “University”), we are 
pleased to provide this Preliminary Financing Plan Summary for the University’s proposed Series 2023 
Revenue Bonds (the “2023 Bonds”).  Below are the highlights of the preliminary financing plan followed by 
a detailed summary:  

 

Preliminary Financing Plan Highlights* 
Par Amount (Estimated as of 6-16-2023) $21,040,000 
Financing Type New Money 
New Money Descriptions (the “Projects”) Renovations and restoration of Mendel Hall ($10MM), 

campus housing renovations ($6MM), infrastructure and 
technology improvements ($5MM), all on the University’s 
St. Paul campus. 

Capitalized Interest Up to six months 
First Principal Payment Date October 1, 2024 
Final Maturity Date October 1, 2052 
Underlying Rating  Baa1  
Underwriter RBC Capital Markets 
Expected Pricing Date June 27, 2023 
Expected Closing/Delivery Date July 18, 2023 

 

Based on our review of the preliminary financing plan prepared by RBC Capital Markets with collaboration 
from North Slope Capital Advisors, including the terms of the financing as summarized on the following 
pages, North Slope Capital Advisors is confident the finance plan can be successfully marketed by the 
underwriter, and the University can fund the resulting debt service. We recommend the Authority issue the 
2023 Bonds to finance the Projects for the University. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
 

NORTH SLOPE CAPITAL ADVISORS by NORTH SLOPE CAPITAL ADVISORS by 
Stephanie M. Chichester, President Nick E. Taylor, Managing Director 
 
 
cc: Ms. Tracey Gran, Senior Vice President, and Chief Financial Officer 
 Ms. Mary Thao, University Controller 

Mr. David Sengstock, Director of Budgeting and Planning 
 Taft Law, Bond Counsel

 
*Preliminary, subject to change based on final pricing. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (St. Catherine University) 
Preliminary Financing Plan Summary  
Date: June 21, 2023 
Page 2 
 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

PRELIMINARY FINANCING PLAN SUMMARY 
 

MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
 

$21,040,000* 
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2023 

(St. Catherine University) 
 
 

June 21, 2023 
 
This Preliminary Financing Plan Summary (the “Summary”) represents North Slope Capital Advisors’ (“North 
Slope”) review of the financing structure and is based on the most recent discussions with the University, 
the Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority (the “Authority”), and the Underwriter.  As of the date 
of this Summary, the University has decided to issue long-term fixed rate bonds to fund the Projects.  The 
structure of the 2023 Bonds is expected to amortize over 30 years with a final maturity of October 1, 2052, 
and provide for a level debt service structure.  The structure provided below is preliminary and subject to 
revision prior to the pricing of the 2023 Bonds which is expected to occur on or around June 27, 2023. 

 
Issuer: Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) 

 
Borrower: St. Catherine University (the “University”)  

Purpose of the 
2023 Bonds: 

 
The University will use the proceeds of the 2023 Bonds to finance or reimburse the 
University for a portion of the costs of the following: 

(1) Renovation to the Historic Mendel Building to create science and technology 
spaces, including flexible faculty research spaces and technologically 
advanced labs; 

(2) Renovations to Sister Alberta and Sister Georgia student apartment buildings 
and Caecilian and St. Mary residence halls; 

(3) Pay for other permissible renovation and capital projects of the University, 
including renovations to the Butler Center, Whitby Hall and Fontbonne Hall, 
and other projects, all on the University’s Saint Paul campus;  

(4) Fund up to six months of interest during construction, and 
(5) Pay issuance costs. 

  
Issue Size: The estimated par amount of the 2023 Bonds of $20.680 million*, including 

estimated new issue premium of approximately $353,000*, will be used to fund the 
Projects and pay the costs of issuance.  The estimated par amount of the 2023 Bonds 
is less than the Authority’s not-to-exceed par of $22.5 million as of the writing of this 
Summary. 
  

  



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (St. Catherine University) 
Preliminary Financing Plan Summary  
Date: June 21, 2023 
Page 3 
 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

Costs of Issuance: 
 
  

Costs of issuance of up to 2% of the par value of the 2023 Bonds may be funded 
with tax-exempt proceeds.  Currently, actual costs of issuance are not expected to 
exceed 2% of the par amount of the 2023 Bonds.   

Type of Sale and 
Purchaser: 

 
The 2023 Bonds will be sold via a negotiated, public underwriting. The University 
has selected RBC Capital Markets as the sole managing underwriter.  The 2023 
Bonds will be issued as federal and State of Minnesota tax-exempt fixed rate bonds. 

Expected Pricing 
Date:  

 

June 27, 2023 

Expected Closing 
Date: 
 

 

July 18, 2023 

TIC (True Interest 
Cost): 

 
The University has opted for a fixed rate mode for the 2023 Bonds.  The estimated 
all-in TIC, assuming rates and market conditions as of June 16, 2023, is 4.99%.  

Bonds 
Denominations: 

 
Denominations will be $5,000 and integral multiples thereof.   
 

Interest Payments: 
 

Semi-annually, beginning October 1, 2023. 
 

Principal Payments: 
 

Annually beginning on October 1, 2024, with a final maturity of October 1, 2052.  

Bonds Structure: 
 

The 2023 Bonds will be structured with level, annual debt service payments.     
 

Redemption: Optional:  The University will have the option to redeem the 2023 Bonds maturing 
on or after October 1, 2033 in whole or in part, at a price of par and without penalty 
beginning on or after October 1, 2032.  
 
Extraordinary Upon Determination of Taxability:  Optional redemption may occur 
upon a Determination of Taxability of the 2023 Bonds, in whole or in part, at a price 
of par plus accrued interest. 
 
Extraordinary Upon Damage, Destruction, or Condemnation:  Optional redemption 
may occur should the financed project facilities suffer damage, destruction, or 
condemnation, in whole or in part, at a price of par plus accrued interest. 
 

Rating: The 2023 Bonds will be rated by Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”).  Moody’s 
assigned a credit rating of Baa1 with a negative outlook to the University’s 
outstanding debt and 2023 Bonds on June 8.   
 

Bank Qualification: 
 

The 2023 Bonds will not be designated as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation.” 

Security: The 2023 Bonds will be issued by the Authority and secured by loan repayments 
made by the University pursuant to a Loan Agreement between the Authority and 
the University, or from other amounts pledged pursuant to a Trust Indenture.  The 
2023 Bonds will be payable solely as a general obligation of the University from the 
general funds and any other legally available moneys of the University.  There will 
not be a mortgage lien nor security interest in any property of the University and 
there will be no ‘negative pledge’ on the University’s real property, subject to 
permitted encumbrances.   
 

Debt Service 
Reserve Account: 

 
 

A debt service reserve fund will not be funded with proceeds from the 2023 Bonds. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (St. Catherine University) 
Preliminary Financing Plan Summary  
Date: June 21, 2023 
Page 4 
 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

 
Financial 
Covenants: 

 
 
The University currently has a rates and charges covenant associated with its Series 
2018 Bonds and has complied with this covenant since the issuance of the Series 
2018 Bonds. The 2023 Bonds will also be subject to the rates and charges 
covenants; however, no additional financial or reporting covenants are expected to  
be applicable to the 2023 Bonds.   
 

Continuing 
Disclosure: 
 

 
The University will execute a “Continuing Disclosure Certificate” for the benefit 
beneficial owners of the 2023 Bonds and will continue to comply with its existing 
Continuing Disclosure undertakings regarding its other outstanding bonds. 
 

Credit 
Enhancement: 

 
None 
 

Trustee/Registrar 
and Paying Agent: 

 
U.S. Bank Trust Company, N.A., Minneapolis, Minnesota.  

Permitted 
Investments: 

 
Investments as permitted by Minnesota statutes. 

  

Schedules: Exhibit A: The University’s existing debt service and debt service for the 2023 
Bonds. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (St. Catherine University) 
Preliminary Financing Plan Summary  
Date: June 21, 2023 
Exhibit A 
 

* Preliminary; subject to change. 

 
 

Source:  North Slope Capital Advisors (June 16, 2023) 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000
20

23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

20
31

20
32

20
33

20
34

20
35

20
36

20
37

20
38

20
39

20
40

20
41

20
42

20
43

20
44

20
45

20
46

20
47

20
48

20
49

20
50

20
51

20
52

20
53

An
nu

al
 P

rin
ci

pa
l a

nd
 In

te
re

st
 ($

00
0s

)

Fiscal Year 
(5/31) Series 2018A Series 2018B Series 2023A Bonds



U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

CREDIT OPINION
9 June 2023

Contacts

Melissa Nicandri +1.212.553.3890
Associate Lead Analyst
melissa.nicandri@moodys.com

Michael Osborn +1.212.553.7799
VP-Senior Credit Officer
michael.osborn@moodys.com

Debra Roane +1.212.553.6899
VP-Sr Credit Officer
debra.roane@moodys.com

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

St. Catherine University, MN
Update following revision of outlook to negative

Summary
St. Catherine University's (Baa1 negative, “St. Kate's”) credit quality reflects its established
brand as an undergraduate college for women with ongoing student market challenges and
operational pressure. Enrollment at St. Kate’s declined 26% since fall 2018, with a 9% drop
between fall 2021 and 2022. Despite management's expectations of enrollment stabilization
over the next few years, growth prospects remain limited and net tuition revenue will
remain stagnant. The university is projecting budget deficits for fiscal years 2023 and 2024,
driven by significant expense inflation and declines in operating revenue. In a typical year,
tuition revenue comprises 75-80% of operating revenue, with enrollment declines adding
operational pressure. Favorably, the university offers diverse educational opportunities,
with graduate and non-traditional programmatic offerings for all adults in addition to the
undergraduate college for women. St. Kate's favorable wealth profile and balance sheet
strength are key credit strengths, with total cash and investments increasing 30% between
fiscal 2018 and 2022. The rating reflects the university’s increasing leverage profile. Favorably,
the debt structure is conservative and reflects management’s good financial strategy.

On June 8th, Moody's revised St. Kate's outlook to negative and affirmed the Baa1 ratings.

Exhibit 1

Student market pressures cause continued declines in net tuition revenue

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

 $25

 $30

 $35

 $40

 $45

 $50

 $55

 $60

 $65

 $70

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

F
u
ll
-t

im
e

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

M
il
li
o
s
n

Fiscal year end May 31

Net Tuition Revenue Total FTE Enrollment

Source: Moody's Investors Service

http://www.surveygizmo.com/s3/1133212/Rate-this-research?pubid=PBM_1366919
https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/St-Catherine-University-MN-credit-rating-600035058/summary


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Credit strengths

» Solid wealth profile with growth in recent years, reaching $246 million total cash and investments in fiscal 2022

» Strong balance sheet, with total cash and investments covering expenses by 2.5x in fiscal 2022

» Diverse programmatic offerings in both traditional undergraduate women's college and nontraditional adult and graduate program
offerings

Credit challenges

» Enrollment pressures due to highly competitive Minnesota private university student market and weak regional demographics,
leading to multi-year declines in total FTE enrollment

» Thinning operations with EBIDA margins projected to decline due to projected deficit operations for fiscal 2023 & 2024

» High reliance on student charges at around 75% of operating revenue

Rating outlook
The negative outlook incorporates Moody’s expectations of continued enrollment declines in fall 2023, as well as weakening of
operating performance due to deficits in fiscal 2023 and 2024.

Factors that could lead to an upgrade

» Significant improvement in enrollment leading to rebound of net tuition revenue

» Sustained strengthening of operating performance over multiple years

» Significant growth in philanthropic support, leading to greater revenue diversity

Factors that could lead to a downgrade

» Sustained weakening of operating performance with EBIDA margins consistently below 10%

» Enrollment declines beyond fall 2023 leading to further deterioration of net tuition revenue

» Material increase in debt beyond current proposed issuance

» Significant declines in monthly liquidity and total cash and investments

This publication does not announce a credit rating action. For any credit ratings referenced in this publication, please see the issuer/deal page on https://ratings.moodys.com for the
most updated credit rating action information and rating history.

2          9 June 2023 St. Catherine University, MN: Update following revision of outlook to negative



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Key indicators

Exhibit 2

St. Catherine University, MN

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2022 pro forma

Median: Baa 

Rated Private 

Universities

Total FTE Enrollment 4,305 3,897 3,768 3,476 3,172 3,172 2,868

Operating Revenue ($000) 107,677 109,998 104,101 101,005 103,260 103,260 98,061

Annual Change in Operating Revenue (%) 5.4 2.2 -5.4 -3.0 2.2 2.2 -1.2

Total Cash & Investments ($000) 191,585 193,658 204,975 263,283 246,315 246,315 213,996

Total Debt ($000) 61,187 70,535 70,535 70,772 70,726 91,206 80,369

Total Cash & Investments to Total Adjusted Debt (x) 3.0 2.7 2.9 3.7 3.5 2.7 2.6

Total Cash & Investments to Operating Expenses (x) 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.7 2.5 2.5 2.0

Monthly Days Cash on Hand (x) 216 210 231 262 221 221 355

EBIDA Margin (%) 8.3 12.0 10.9 10.5 11.5 11.5 14.8

Total Debt to EBIDA (x) 6.8 5.3 6.2 6.7 6.0 7.7 5.4

Annual Debt Service Coverage (x) 2.9 3.8 3.5 3.3 3.7 3.7 2.5

2022 pro forma includes 2023 bond issuance
Source: Moody's Investors Service

Profile
St. Catherine University (“St. Kate's”) is a private, not-for-profit Catholic university for women located in Saint Paul, MN. The university
offers a traditional undergraduate college for women, a graduate college, and a college for adults with non-traditional programs. As of
fiscal 2022, St. Kate's generated $103 million in operating revenue and as of fall 2022, enrolled 3,172 full-time equivalent students.

Detailed credit considerations
Market profile: established college for women facing continued student market pressure
St. Kate's will continue facing enrollment challenges in the near-term despite improved strategies and investment in the campus. The
university offers a variety of programs in its traditional undergraduate college for women, as well as programs in the college for adults
and graduate college, with extensive programmatic offerings in the health sciences, business, and education. St. Kate's serves a diverse
population with a high proportion of Pell-eligible students and ranks high in social mobility with over 50% BIPOC in the college for
women. Favorably, matriculation is above many peers at 24% and retention is above 80%.

Despite these factors, competition with other private institutions in the Saint Paul area has contributed to multiple years of enrollment
declines at St. Kate's. In fall 2022, the university enrolled 3,172 full-time equivalent students, down nearly 9% over the last year
and down 26% in five years. Enrolment declines are projected through fall 2023, but management expects enrollment to stabilize
thereafter. To address some of the enrollment pressures, the university assessed underperforming programs in the graduate college,
aligning offerings to be more competitive and meet student demand. Though some admission trends have become more favorable
post-pandemic, uncertainty remains and growth prospects will remain limited.

The university is prioritizing strategic investments in the campus to improve the student experience including updating its science and
technology equipment and renovating student apartments and residence halls. Management expects these critical improvements will
aid enrollment prospects in future years.

Operating performance: projected weakening of operations due to decline in net tuition revenue
Operating performance will remain pressured in the near-term as St. Kate's grapples with declining student charges. Projected deficits
for fiscal years 2023 and 2024 will result in weaker performance with single digit EBIDA margins. While the university has a strong track
record of aligning expenses with revenue, fiscal 2023 expenses are projected to increase substantially while enrollment declines depress
net student charges and overall revenue. In a typical year, tuition and fees comprise around 75-80% of total operating revenue. With
this high reliance on student charges, student demand remains critical to operational stability with enrollment volatility adding more
uncertainty to future operating performance. To cover projected deficits, the university is considering using gifts and other reserves.

3          9 June 2023 St. Catherine University, MN: Update following revision of outlook to negative



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Favorably, a good financial strategy and seasoned management team partially mitigate operational risk. Management monitors the
budget closely using conservative assumptions, including a contingency, and makes expense adjustments throughout the year. Fiscal
prudence will aid St. Kate's in managing through a more pressured revenue environment coupled with expense inflation. Philanthropic
support has improved and will continue serving as a key credit stabilizer amid operational pressure.

Wealth and liquidity: strong wealth profile with recent growth
St. Kate's strong wealth profile is a key credit stabilizer, but may deteriorate somewhat in the near term due to potential use of reserves
to aid deficit operations. Growth in cash and investments of nearly 30% in five years, largely driven by investment returns, provides a
solid runway to address operational pressures. In fiscal 2022, total cash and investments reached $246 million. Balance sheet strength
is reflected with total cash and investments covering operating expenses a strong 2.5x in fiscal 2022.

Liquidity
Despite solid growth in total cash and investments, liquidity has remained relatively stagnant over the last five years. In fiscal 2022,
liquidity of $57 million translated into 221 monthly days cash on hand, which is below peers. However, this will remain a stabilizing
factor for the university as it manages through operational headwinds.

Leverage: financial leverage will weaken with proposed issuance and expected deficits; balance sheet still provides solid
cushion
Financial leverage will be elevated for St. Kate's with the proposed Series 2023 issuance. Upcoming principal payments in fiscal 2025
will add strain to debt service coverage. As of fiscal 2022, annual debt service coverage was 3.7x but will weaken closer to 2x with
expectations of margin erosion coinciding with upcoming principal payments. Total debt to EBIDA reached 7.8x in fiscal 2022, elevated
compared to the 5.4x peer median, and stands to weaken further. Total cash and investments still provide solid coverage of total
adjusted debt, at 2.7x in fiscal 2022. The proposed debt will aid the university in addressing an elevated age of plant and is part of the
strategic plan to improve the student experience.

Legal security
All of St. Kate’s bonds are non-secured general obligations of the university. The estimated pro forma maximum annual debt service
coverage is 1.9x. Outstanding bonds do not have a debt service coverage covenant.

Debt structure
All pro forma debt is fixed rate with proposed regular amortization through maturity in 2053. Annual debt service on the Series 2023
bonds is about $1.32 million. The Series 2018A bonds are amortizing starting in 2024. There is no debt service reserve fund.

Debt-related derivatives
None.

Pensions and OPEB
The university provides a defined contribution plan to eligible employees. The total expenses for the defined contribution plan in fiscal
2022 were $685 thousand.

4          9 June 2023 St. Catherine University, MN: Update following revision of outlook to negative



MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

ESG considerations
St. Catherine University, MN's ESG Credit Impact Score is Highly Negative CIS-4

Exhibit 3

ESG Credit Impact Score

Source: Moody's Investors Service

St. Catherine University’s (St. Kate’s) ESG Credit Impact Score (CIS-4) is driven by very high social risks from demographic and societal
trends, as well as moderate credit risk from customer relations, offsetting minimal environmental and governance risks.

Exhibit 4

ESG Issuer Profile Scores

Source: Moody's Investors Service

Environmental
St. Kate’s exposure to environmental risks (E-2) is minimal. The university’s location in St. Paul, MN exposes it to potential water stress
and rising temperatures risks, but both are currently manageable.

Social
St. Kate’s exposure to social risks (S-4) is driven largely by exposure to demographic and societal trends. The university faces significant
enrollment pressures, particularly at its all-women’s undergraduate college, which recruits heavily in the State of Minnesota, an
area of low-population growth projections and very high student competition. Customer relations are a risk, despite relatively good
matriculation because of continued enrollment losses, modest donor support, pressured student charges revenue, and a high reliance
on those charges to support operations. The university’s human capital risks are manageable and compare favorably to the majority of
the sector because of a lower portion of instructional faculty being tenured, providing the university with operating flexibility.

Governance
St. Kate’s has manageable exposure to governance risks (G-2). Despite challenging enrollment trends and pressured revenue growth,
strong financial management has kept operating performance historically in surplus, supporting management credibility and track
record. Like a majority of the sector, the large composition of the board, including alumni and key donors, introduces moderately
negative board structure risk.

ESG Issuer Profile Scores and Credit Impact Scores for the rated entity/transaction are available on Moodys.com. In order to view the
latest scores, please click here to go to the landing page for the entity/transaction on MDC and view the ESG Scores section.

5          9 June 2023 St. Catherine University, MN: Update following revision of outlook to negative

https://www.moodys.com/credit-ratings/org-credit-rating-600035058


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

Rating methodology and scorecard factors
The Higher Education rating methodology includes a scorecard that summarizes the factors that are generally most important to
higher education credit profiles. Because the scorecard is a summary and may not include every consideration in the credit analysis for
a specific issuer, a scorecard-indicated outcome may or may not match an assigned rating. We assess brand and strategic positioning,
operating environment, and financial strategy on a qualitative basis, as described in the methodology.

Exhibit 5

St. Catherine University

Scorecard Factors and Sub-factors Value Score

Factor 1:   Scale (15%)

Adjusted Operating Revenue (USD Million) 103 A

Factor 2:   Market Profile (20%)

Brand and Strategic Positioning Ba Ba

Operating Environment A A

Factor 3:   Operating Performance (10%)

EBIDA Margin 11% A

Factor 4:   Financial Resources and Liquidity (25%)

Total Cash and Investments (USD Million) 246 A

Total Cash and Investments to Operating Expenses 2.5 A

Factor 5:   Leverage and coverage (20%)

Total Cash and Investments to Total Adjusted Debt 2.7 A

Annual Debt Service Coverage 3.7 A

Factor 6:   Financial Policy and Strategy (10%)

Financial Policy and Strategy Baa Baa

Scorecard-Indicated Outcome A3

Assigned Rating Baa1
Data is based on most recent fiscal year available. Debt may include pro forma data for new debt issued or proposed to be issued after the close of the fiscal year.

For non-US issuers, nominal figures are in US dollars consistent with the Higher Education Methodology.

Scorecard incorporates Series 2023 bond issuance.
Source: Moody's Investors Service

6          9 June 2023 St. Catherine University, MN: Update following revision of outlook to negative

https://www.moodys.com/researchdocumentcontentpage.aspx?docid=PBM_1257002


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

© 2023 Moody’s Corporation, Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Moody’s Analytics, Inc. and/or their licensors and affiliates (collectively, “MOODY’S”). All rights reserved.
CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT
COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT OR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND INFORMATION PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S (COLLECTIVELY,
“PUBLICATIONS”) MAY INCLUDE SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS. MOODY’S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL
FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT. SEE APPLICABLE MOODY’S
RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE TYPES OF CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY’S
CREDIT RATINGS. CREDIT RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK, MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE
VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS, NON-CREDIT ASSESSMENTS (“ASSESSMENTS”), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT
STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY’S PUBLICATIONS MAY ALSO INCLUDE QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND
RELATED OPINIONS OR COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY’S ANALYTICS, INC. AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES. MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER
OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES. MOODY’S CREDIT
RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR.
MOODY’S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS AND OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLISHES ITS PUBLICATIONS WITH THE EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING
THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE ITS OWN STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE,
HOLDING, OR SALE.
MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS, AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY RETAIL INVESTORS AND IT WOULD BE
RECKLESS AND INAPPROPRIATE FOR RETAIL INVESTORS TO USE MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS OR PUBLICATIONS WHEN MAKING
AN INVESTMENT DECISION. IF IN DOUBT YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANCIAL OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER.
ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NONE OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED
OR OTHERWISE REPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED, REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE
FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IN ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON WITHOUT MOODY’S PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT.
MOODY’S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLICATIONS ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMARK AS THAT TERM IS
DEFINED FOR REGULATORY PURPOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED IN ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT IN THEM BEING CONSIDERED A BENCHMARK.
All information contained herein is obtained by MOODY’S from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well
as other factors, however, all information contained herein is provided “AS IS” without warranty of any kind. MOODY'S adopts all necessary measures so that the information it
uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources MOODY'S considers to be reliable including, when appropriate, independent third-party sources. However,
MOODY’S is not an auditor and cannot in every instance independently verify or validate information received in the credit rating process or in preparing its Publications.
To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any
indirect, special, consequential, or incidental losses or damages whatsoever arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any
such information, even if MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses or
damages, including but not limited to: (a) any loss of present or prospective profits or (b) any loss or damage arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a
particular credit rating assigned by MOODY’S.
To the extent permitted by law, MOODY’S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, licensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compensatory
losses or damages caused to any person or entity, including but not limited to by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type of liability that, for the
avoidance of doubt, by law cannot be excluded) on the part of, or any contingency within or beyond the control of, MOODY’S or any of its directors, officers, employees, agents,
representatives, licensors or suppliers, arising from or in connection with the information contained herein or the use of or inability to use any such information.
NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY CREDIT
RATING, ASSESSMENT, OTHER OPINION OR INFORMATION IS GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY’S IN ANY FORM OR MANNER WHATSOEVER.
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody’s Corporation (“MCO”), hereby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including
corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. have, prior to assignment of any credit rating,
agreed to pay to Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. for credit ratings opinions and services rendered by it fees ranging from $1,000 to approximately $5,000,000. MCO and Moody’s
Investors Service also maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of Moody’s Investors Service credit ratings and credit rating processes. Information regarding
certain affiliations that may exist between directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold credit ratings from Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and have also
publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than 5%, is posted annually at www.moodys.com under the heading “Investor Relations — Corporate Governance
— Charter Documents - Director and Shareholder Affiliation Policy.”
Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian Financial Services License of MOODY’S affiliate, Moody’s Investors
Service Pty Limited ABN 61 003 399 657AFSL 336969 and/or Moody’s Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABN 94 105 136 972 AFSL 383569 (as applicable). This document is intended
to be provided only to “wholesale clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you
represent to MOODY’S that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither you nor the entity you represent will directly or
indirectly disseminate this document or its contents to “retail clients” within the meaning of section 761G of the Corporations Act 2001. MOODY’S credit rating is an opinion as to
the creditworthiness of a debt obligation of the issuer, not on the equity securities of the issuer or any form of security that is available to retail investors.
Additional terms for Japan only: Moody's Japan K.K. (“MJKK”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Group Japan G.K., which is wholly-owned by Moody’s
Overseas Holdings Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MCO. Moody’s SF Japan K.K. (“MSFJ”) is a wholly-owned credit rating agency subsidiary of MJKK. MSFJ is not a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”). Therefore, credit ratings assigned by MSFJ are Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings. Non-NRSRO Credit Ratings are assigned by an
entity that is not a NRSRO and, consequently, the rated obligation will not qualify for certain types of treatment under U.S. laws. MJKK and MSFJ are credit rating agencies registered
with the Japan Financial Services Agency and their registration numbers are FSA Commissioner (Ratings) No. 2 and 3 respectively.
MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) hereby disclose that most issuers of debt securities (including corporate and municipal bonds, debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred
stock rated by MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) have, prior to assignment of any credit rating, agreed to pay to MJKK or MSFJ (as applicable) for credit ratings opinions and services
rendered by it fees ranging from JPY100,000 to approximately JPY550,000,000.
MJKK and MSFJ also maintain policies and procedures to address Japanese regulatory requirements.

REPORT NUMBER 1366919

7          9 June 2023 St. Catherine University, MN: Update following revision of outlook to negative

https://www.moodys.com/


MOODY'S INVESTORS SERVICE U.S. PUBLIC FINANCE

CLIENT SERVICES

Americas 1-212-553-1653

Asia Pacific 852-3551-3077

Japan 81-3-5408-4100

EMEA 44-20-7772-5454

8          9 June 2023 St. Catherine University, MN: Update following revision of outlook to negative



127224374v1 
 

 

 
RESOLUTION RELATING TO FINANCING TERMS FOR 

ST. CATHERINE UNIVERSITY 
 

 Be It Resolved by the Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority as follows: 
 

1. This Authority has received and held a public hearing with respect to, and adopted 
a Resolution Relating to Application for St. Catherine University, a Minnesota nonprofit 
corporation, formerly known as The College of St. Catherine (the “University”), as owner and 
operator of St. Catherine University (the “Institution”), to finance costs of a project (the “Project”) 
consisting of the acquisition, design, demolition, construction, renovation, improvement, 
furnishing and equipping of various facilities, including (i) Mendel Hall (approximately 36,000 
square feet of classroom, labs, office, and common space) on the Institution’s St. Paul campus, 
including creating flexible and adaptable spaces, modernizing science teaching spaces, upgrading 
accessibility, and upgrading infrastructure; (ii) Sister Alberta and Sister Georgia student apartment 
buildings and Caecilian and St. Mary residence halls, including renewing flooring, plumbing, 
fixtures, walkways, and community learning spaces; (iii) the Butler Center, including repairs to 
entrance and renovation of HVAC system; (iv) Whitby Hall, including repairs to building entrance, 
masonry upgrades, and renovation of simulation classroom lab spaces to accommodate a shared 
services model of teaching; (v) Fontbonne Hall, including repairs to building entrance, masonry 
upgrades and renovation of classroom space to support the Institution’s Fashion Merchandizing 
program; (vi) certain stormwater infrastructure and drainage improvements (including installation 
of a drainage pond and new grading) to support the Institution’s tennis, track and softball programs; 
(vii) elevator replacement in the Music Building, and (viii) campus wide facilities infrastructure 
improvements. 

The facilities and improvements to be financed by the Project are hereinafter referred to as 
the “Project Facilities.”  The Project Facilities are or will be owned and operated by the University 
and located on the Institution’s St. Paul campus, the principal street address of which is 2004 
Randolph Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota. 

 
2. The Authority has received assurances that all conditions to be met by the 

University as provided in the Resolution referenced above (the “Resolution”) have been, or will 
be timely, met and complied with. 

3. There has not been disclosed to the Authority any material adverse change in the 
financial condition, operations or status of the University or the Institution or in the Project or the 
Project Facilities or otherwise relating to the said Application that would affect the Resolution or 
the financing of the Project as proposed. 

4. The Authority hereby ratifies and confirms all action heretofore taken with respect 
to the Application of the University. 

5. As provided by the Resolution, North Slope Capital Advisors, LLC, as municipal 
advisor to the University has reviewed the terms set forth in the Preliminary Financing Plan 
Summary, dated June 21, 2023 (the “Financing Plan”), recommending the issuance of Revenue 



127224374v1 
 

 -2-  
 

Bonds, Series 2023 (St. Catherine University) (the “Bonds”) in the maximum aggregate principal 
amount of $22,500,000 to provide financing for the Project, which terms are hereby approved. 

6. At the request and with the consent of the University, and with the advice of the 
University’s municipal advisor, the Executive Director of the Authority has recommended the 
selection of RBC Capital Markets, LLC as underwriter of the Bonds (the “Underwriter”). 

7. Upon the recommendation of the University’s municipal advisor and bond counsel 
and the approval of the University, the Executive Director may execute and deliver on behalf of 
the Authority a Bond Purchase Agreement whereby the Authority agrees to sell and the 
Underwriter agrees to purchase the Bonds in the maximum aggregate principal amount of 
$22,500,000, to be issued in one or more series of tax-exempt bonds bearing a fixed rate or rates 
of interest at a true interest cost not to exceed  6.0%, and a price of not less than 98% of the 
principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest (or in the alternative, providing for 
underwriting compensation of not more than 2% of the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued 
interest) subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

8. The Executive Director shall direct bond counsel to the Authority or other legal 
counsel to prepare for review by the Executive Director, the University and the Underwriter all 
necessary bond documents, including a Loan Agreement, a Trust Indenture, a Bond Purchase 
Agreement, a Mortgage (if necessary), a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and all other 
documents deemed necessary or desirable consistent with the provisions of the Financing Plan and 
substantially similar to the bond documents for revenue bonds most recently issued and sold by 
the Authority, but with appropriate changes. 

9. The Executive Director shall cause to be prepared an Official Statement and any 
Preliminary Official Statement in consultation with the Underwriter, the University, and bond 
counsel setting forth all material facts with respect to the Bonds, the Project, the Project Facilities, 
the Authority, the University and the Institution. Upon recommendation of the municipal advisor 
and the bond counsel, such Official Statement or any Preliminary Official Statement shall be 
deemed by the Executive Director (or with his approval, the University) to be the final official 
statement for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The 
Authority hereby consents to the preparation of the Official Statement in such deemed final form 
and the distribution by the Underwriter in offering the Bonds for sale to the public and to any 
changes to the Official Statement to reflect the final terms of the Bonds and the related bond 
documents. Notwithstanding such consent, the Authority takes no responsibility for, and makes no 
representations or warranties as to, the accuracy, sufficiency or completeness of the Official 
Statement (other than information relating to the Authority). 

10. The Underwriter is authorized to distribute the Official Statement and any 
Preliminary Official Statement for pricing purposes, provided that prior to the distribution, if 
recommended by bond counsel, an application for registration of the Bonds shall be filed under 
the Minnesota Securities Act, Chapter 80A, Minnesota Statutes. Prior to the execution of the Bond 
Purchase Agreement, bond counsel shall advise the Executive Director that such registration shall 
have been made effective by the Minnesota Department of Commerce or that registration is not 
required for offer and sale of the Bonds in Minnesota. 



127224374v1 
 

 -3-  
 

11. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the Bonds shall not be issued and 
delivered and the bond documents (other than the Bond Purchase Agreement) shall not be executed 
and delivered without the further action and approval and adoption of a Series Resolution with 
respect to the Bonds by the Authority. 

12. Upon the recommendation of the University and the University’s municipal 
advisor, the Executive Director is authorized to select a Trustee for the Bonds, which shall also act 
as paying agent and registrar. 

13. The Authority and the University each respectively reserves its right to terminate 
the Project and the financing thereof under the Act as provided in the Indemnity Agreement. 

 
 
 

Adopted:  June 21, 2023. 
MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION  
FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       Gary D. Benson, Chair 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________ 
       David D. Rowland, Secretary 
 
 

 



127225214v1 
 

 

SERIES RESOLUTION 

 
MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY 

 
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2023 
(ST. CATHERINE UNIVERSITY) 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority, as follows: 

1. Pursuant to resolutions adopted on April 26 and June 21, 2023 (the “Prior 
Resolutions”), the Authority has (i) approved the Application of St. Catherine University, a 
Minnesota nonprofit corporation, formerly known as The College of Saint Catherine (the 
“University”), as owner and operator of St. Catherine University (the “Institution”), to finance 
costs of project facilities more fully described therein, and conducted a public hearing in 
connection therewith as required by law, (ii) authorized the issuance and sale of the Authority’s 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2023 (St. Catherine University) (the “Bonds”) and (iii) directed the 
preparation of documents, including an Official Statement. All provisions and findings of the Prior 
Resolutions are hereby ratified and confirmed except to the extent amended hereby and 
incorporated herein. 

2. The Prior Resolutions authorized Bonds to be issued in the maximum aggregate 
principal amount of $22,500,000. The University has requested that the Bonds be issued as one or 
more series of tax-exempt bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $22,500,000, the 
interest on which will be excluded from gross income of the bondholders pursuant to the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 

3. The Executive Director, on behalf of the Authority, is authorized and directed to 
take all action necessary or desirable to negotiate the sale of the Bonds, provided that the Bonds 
shall mature not later than October 1, 2053, the principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed 
$22,500,000, the true interest cost shall not exceed 6.0% per annum with respect to the Bonds, and 
the purchase price shall be not less than 98% of the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued 
interest, if any (or in the alternative providing for underwriting compensation of not more than 2% 
of the principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest). Upon the recommendation of the 
University’s municipal advisor and bond counsel and with the approval of the University, the 
Executive Director shall execute and deliver, on behalf of the Authority, a Bond Purchase 
Agreement. A schedule summarizing the maturities, interest rates, yields or issue prices and other 
terms and provisions of the Bonds, and the purchase price and other particulars relating to the sale 
of the Bonds, shall be made available to the Authority at the next regularly scheduled meeting of 
the Authority following the execution of the Bond Purchase Agreement. This Authority hereby 
authorizes the issuance and delivery of the Bonds and no further approval by this Authority is 
required. 

4. The forms of the following documents relating to the Bonds have been made 
available to the Authority: 



127225214v1 
 

 

a. Loan Agreement (“Loan Agreement”) between the Authority and the 
University, expected to be dated as of July 1, 2023. 

b. Trust Indenture (“Indenture”) between the Authority and U.S. Bank Trust 
Company, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), expected to be 
dated as of July 1, 2023. 

c. Continuing Disclosure Certificate made by the University, expected to be 
dated as of July 1, 2023. 

The Chair, the Secretary and any officer authorized to act on behalf of the Chair or the Secretary 
are each, acting individually, authorized to execute, seal and deliver counterparts of the Loan 
Agreement and the Indenture, duly completed, for and in the name of the Authority, with all such 
changes and insertions therein as the officer executing the same shall approve, such approval to be 
evidenced conclusively by such officer’s signature.  In addition, the Executive Director of the 
Authority is hereby authorized to furnish to the original purchaser of the Bonds a reasonable 
number of copies of the final Official Statement for purposes of such purchaser’s obligation to 
provide copies of the final Official Statement to customers and potential customers pursuant to 
MSRB Rule G-32 and Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12, respectively. 

5. The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth in the Indenture, and when 
printed in typeset or typewritten form shall be executed, sealed and delivered by the manual or 
facsimile signatures of the Chair or the Vice Chair and the Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of 
the Authority and submitted to the Trustee for authentication, all as more fully provided in the 
Indenture. 

6. The appointment of U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee 
under the Indenture is hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 

7. Other than proceeds that will be used to pay a portion of the cost issuance (including 
the underwriting discount), the proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited as follows (capitalized 
terms have the meanings given in the Indenture): 

a. The accrued interest on the Bonds, if any, shall be deposited to the Series 
2023 Bond and Interest Sinking Fund Account, to be kept and maintained 
by the Trustee under the Indenture. 

b. All other proceeds of the Bonds shall be deposited to the Series 2023 
Construction Account with the Trustee under the Indenture (except that an 
amount representing capitalized construction period interest, if any, may be 
deposited to the Series 2023 Bond and Interest Sinking Fund Account if so 
provided by the Indenture) to be used and paid out by the Trustee for 
payment of the Project Costs, in accordance with the Indenture and the Loan 
Agreement. 

8. As required by Sections 136A.25 to 136A.42, Minnesota Statutes, as amended (the 
“Act”), the officers of the Authority authorized to sign checks or otherwise handle funds of the 
Authority shall furnish a surety bond, executed by a surety company authorized to transact business 



127225214v1 
 

 

in the State of Minnesota as surety and file the same in the office of the Secretary of State of 
Minnesota, subject to approval of the Attorney General, prior to delivery of the Bonds. 

9. Pursuant to the recommendation of bond counsel, the Authority hereby finds and 
determines that a combination of mortgagee’s form or owner’s form of title insurance policy, or 
title insurance commitment, or owner and encumbrances reports, or title opinions, may be 
furnished by the University as evidence of title to the Project Site (as defined in the Loan 
Agreement) and priority of liens. 

10. The terms and provisions of the Bond Purchase Agreement and the documents 
listed in paragraph 4 of this Resolution as to which the Authority is a party and the Prior 
Resolutions are all approved, ratified and confirmed, except to the extent amended hereby. The 
officers of the Authority, the municipal advisor to the University and bond counsel are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver all closing documents and do every other thing 
necessary or convenient to carry out the terms and provisions of each such bond document to the 
end that the Bonds shall be delivered, secured and serviced and to carry out the purposes and 
provisions of the Act with respect thereto without further resolution or other action by this 
Authority. 

Adopted: June 21, 2023. 

MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION 
FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       Gary D. Benson, Chair 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
       David D. Rowland, Secretary 

 
 

 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority
FY2024 Proposed Budget
July 2023 ‐ June 2024

 FY23 Adjusted Budget   FY23 New Expected   FY24 Proposed Budget   Difference 
Income
   4010 Annual Fee Income                           483,744.22                            473,307.00                              494,087.95              20,780.95 
   4020 Application Fee Income                               2,000.00                                2,000.00                                  1,000.00               (1,000.00)
   4000 Interest Income                             18,000.00                              27,500.00                                35,000.00                 7,500.00 
Total Income                           503,744.22                            502,807.00                              530,087.95              27,280.95 

Asset Acquisitions (over $2k threshold) 

Office Furniture/Equipment (Capitalized) 13,635.47                            13,635.47                            6,000.00                                            (7,635.47)

                          ‐  

                          ‐  

Expenses
   6000 Stipends                               2,000.00                                2,000.00                                  2,640.00                    640.00 
   6001 Board Travel                               2,800.00                                2,800.00                                  4,000.00                 1,200.00 
   6002 Communications
         6002.01 Communications ‐ Phones                               3,900.00                                3,900.00                                  4,750.00                    850.00 
         6002.02 Communications ‐ Internet                               2,000.00                                2,000.00                                  2,000.00                             ‐ 
         6002.03 Communications ‐ Software                                   850.00                                    850.00                                  1,000.00                    150.00 
         6002.04 Communications ‐ Website                               3,800.00                                3,800.00                                10,000.00                 6,200.00 
         6002.05 Communications ‐ Misc                                   575.00                                    575.00                                      750.00                    175.00 
   Total 6002 Communications                             11,125.00                              11,125.00                                18,500.00                 7,375.00 
   6003 Staff Travel                             17,000.00                              17,000.00                                20,000.00                 3,000.00 
   6004 Office Rent                             44,500.00                              44,500.00                                46,000.00                 1,500.00 
   6005 Office Supplies                                   500.00                                    500.00                                  1,000.00                    500.00 
         6005.01 COVID‐19 Related Expenses                                            ‐                                               ‐                                                 ‐                               ‐ 
   6006 Repairs                                   750.00                                    750.00                                  1,500.00                    750.00 
   6007 Printing Expense                                   750.00                                    750.00                                  1,500.00                    750.00 
   6008 Periodicals/Memberships                               9,000.00                                9,000.00                                  9,000.00                             ‐ 
   6009 Fiscal Consultant Fees                                            ‐                                               ‐                                   5,000.00                 5,000.00 
   6010 Audit Fees                             19,950.00                              19,950.00                                20,550.00                    600.00 
   6012 Legal Fees                             25,500.00                              25,500.00                                52,000.00              26,500.00 
   6013 Insurance Expense                               1,849.00                                1,849.00                                  2,000.00                    151.00 
   6015 Miscellaneous Expense                               2,800.00                                2,800.00                                  5,000.00                 2,200.00 
   6016 Bank Service Charges                               2,350.00                                2,350.00                                  2,750.00                    400.00 
   6017 Conference Expenses                             29,000.00                              29,000.00                                16,000.00             (13,000.00)
   6018 Professional Development‐Board                                            ‐                                               ‐                                   3,000.00                 3,000.00 
   6020 Professional Development‐STAFF                               3,000.00                                3,000.00                                  5,000.00                 2,000.00 
   6021 IT
         6021.01 IT ‐ Managed IT Services                               8,000.00                                8,000.00                                  9,000.00                 1,000.00 
         6021.02 IT ‐ Software                               2,000.00                                2,000.00                                  2,300.00                    300.00 
         6021.03 IT ‐ Consulting and Training                                            ‐                                               ‐                                   5,000.00                 5,000.00 
         6021.04 IT ‐ Misc                               5,750.00                                5,750.00                                      750.00               (5,000.00)
   Total 6021 IT                             15,750.00                              15,750.00                                17,050.00                 1,300.00 
   6023 Postage/Delivery Expense                                   250.00                                    250.00                                      400.00                    150.00 
   6100 Salaries                           228,500.00                            228,500.00                              278,000.00              49,500.00 
   6101 Fringe Benefits                             81,500.00                              81,500.00                                86,000.00                 4,500.00 
   6104 Worker's Compensation                                   170.00                                    170.00                                      170.00                             ‐ 
   6107 Office Contract Work                                   250.00                                    250.00                                  1,000.00                    750.00 
   6200 Equipment Leases
      6200.01 Equipment Lease ‐ Copier                               3,550.00                                3,550.00                                  3,250.00                  (300.00)
      6200.02 Equipment Lease ‐ Postage Machine                                   730.28                                    730.28                                      250.00                  (480.28)
      6200.03 Equipment Lease ‐ Aquos Board                               2,800.00                                2,800.00                                  2,800.00                             ‐ 
   Total 6200 Equipment Leases                               7,080.28                                7,080.28                                  6,300.00                  (780.28)
Total Expenses                           520,009.75                            520,009.75                              610,360.00              90,350.25 

Net Operating Income                           (16,265.53)                           (17,202.75)                             (80,272.05)            (64,006.52)

 Total Expenses Without Capitalized Items                            506,374.28                            506,374.28                              604,360.00              97,985.72 

Net Operating Income Without Capitalized Items                              (2,630.06)                              (3,567.28)                             (74,272.05)            (71,641.99)



 
 

To: Authority Board Members 

From:  Barry W. Fick, Executive Director 
  Amanda Lee, Operations Manager 
  MN Higher Education Facilities Authority 

Date:  June 16, 2023 

Subject Annual Review of Authority Fees  

 

Calculation of Discount 
 

Using the procedure outlined in the June 1996 Authority Resolution, the following calculation was made 
to determine the fee discount for the upcoming fiscal year 2024. 

Estimated Net Position as of 6/30/2023:                                $2,103,261 

     Plus:    Projected Fee Revenue for FY 2024      1,414,537 
     Plus:    Projected investment income for FY 2024 
                   (Includes unrealized gain/loss)           36,000 
   $3,553,798 
 
     Less:    Projected annual operating expense for FY 2024          612,860        
     Less:    Target Net Position (current)       2,103,261 
                      
                  Total           837,677 
 
      Divided by: Fee Revenue     $1,414,537 
 
Calculated fee adjustment for fiscal year 2024       59.22% 
 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Annual Review of Authority Fees 
June 2023                     Page 2 
 
 

 

Background Information 

Prior to 1996, the Authority charged the full administrative fee allowed under federal tax rules as its primary 
source of revenue. Due to net revenues from those fees after expenses, an operating reserve was created, 
and the interest earned on that reserve has been used as an additional revenue source. In 1996, the Authority 
implemented a policy to annually review projected revenues and expenses to determine the fee income 
necessary to meet expenses while holding the operating reserve or, as referred to in this analysis, the Net 
Position, steady, neither increasing or decreasing materially.  

Based on the annual review of fee income and expenses, the Authority adjusts the fiscal year adjustment to 
the legally allowed administrative fee to generate sufficient income to fund cash expenses and remain 
approximately budget neutral for each fiscal year. The following chart shows the Authority fee adjustment for 
each fiscal year since 1997:  

   
Fiscal Year(s) Discount Years 

     
1997    30% 1 
1998    40% 1 
1999  - 2002  50% 4 

2003  - 2004  60% 2 
2005    70% 1 
2006    80% 1 
2007  - 2008  75% 2 
2009    70% 1 
2010  - 2012  75% 3 
2013  - 2016  70% 4 
2017  - 2023  65% 7 

   
Based on a Board review of Net Position, the fiscal year fee was set to maintain the Net Position at 
approximately its current level. Beginning in fiscal year 2007, the discount was set so that projected 
income equaled estimated expenses, resulting in the Net Position remaining stable from year to year.  
 
 
 
 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Annual Review of Authority Fees 
June 2023                     Page 3 
 
 

 

Projection Model  
 
Exhibit 1 is a model showing revenue and expenses for the past 3 years and revenue and expenses for fiscal 
years 2023 (estimated) and 2024 (projected). There are several alternative discount amounts presented 
for fiscal year 2024 to show the effect on Net Position.  
 
Assumptions for Projections 

1. Fiscal year 2024 total revenues are based on the assumption that the Authority will issue the following 
bonds and notes in FY2024: 

i. School 1: $20,650,000 
ii. School 2: $70,000,000 

2. The investment earnings estimate is based on income from securities held. Under the Authority’s 
Investment Policy all investments are laddered in Government Securities, Government-agency securities 
or FDIC insured Certificate of Deposits. There are currently 12 securities in the portfolio ranging in par 
value from $100,000 to $200,000, having maturities ranging from July 2023 to November 2024 with 
an average interest rate of 2.79% percent.  

As long as rates continue to be strong, as they are now, the Authority will be able to replace all of its CD’s 
earning under 1% by the end of January 2024. (All held to maturity.) Unless rates drop substantially 
during the fiscal year, we expect the unrealized gain/loss to return to a much more stable level. 

3. The Authority adopted the requirements of Statement 31 of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) beginning with the fiscal year 1998 financial statements. Under this Statement, the change 
in market value of an investment is reflected as an unrealized gain or loss in revenue and ultimately an 
increase or decrease in the Net Position. The Authority’s investment policy encourages the holding of 
securities to maturity, at which time the security matures at its par value and the unrealized gain or loss 
that affected the financial statements relating to this security must be removed from the current income 
statement. The unrealized gain/loss calculation in Exhibit 1 for fiscal years 2023 and 2024 is an estimate of 
the difference between the market value at the end of one fiscal year and the market value at the end of 
the next fiscal year.  

4. The projected expenses are based on known expenses for equipment leases, office space lease, other 
contractual obligations, and anticipated increases from the expenses for the previous year. Fiscal year 
2024 expenses include an April 2025 conference, ADA accessibility website modifications, assistance 
with creation of a database as a step in succession planning, as well as estimates for typical annual expenses. 



Minnesota Higher Education Facilities Authority 
Annual Review of Authority Fees 
June 2023                     Page 4 
 
 

 

Salaries and benefits are unknown until the legislature approves a new Managerial Plan, which will not take 
place until May or June 2024.  

Due to lease accounting rule changes in FY2023, depreciation is now factored into the estimate as of 
FY2024, which includes rent and an estimate of depreciated assets. The Authority purchased new office 
furniture and capitalized assets in FY2024 and the depreciation of those assets will be realized as an 
expense over several years. The Authority will use straight-line depreciation of office improvements for 
seven years (the term of the current lease), and straight-line depreciation of office furniture for ten years.  
Other noncash, year-end adjustments, such as the increase or decrease in earned vacation and severance 
liability, and pension liability are included in the Net Position for prior years (2018-2022) but are not 
estimated in the 2023 estimate or 2024 prediction due to volatility. The largest non-cash expense besides 
depreciation is usually pension liability, which is calculated at the state from data two years in the past.  

Conclusion 

The calculation demonstrates that a fee discount of approximately 60 percent would allow the Authority 
to keep the Net Position near its current level. Based on the Fee Analysis, staff recommend the discount 
be set at 65 percent for fiscal year 2024.  

While Exhibit 1 shows a discount rate of 65 percent for fiscal year 2024 will result in a deficit, the budget 
includes several unknown items that have an equal likelihood of being as high as budgeted or significantly 
lower than budgeted. Authority staff recommend maintaining the 65 percent discount rate for FY2024 
and re-evaluating whether the discount rate should be adjusted in FY2025. 

If the staff recommendation is adopted by the Board, this will represent the eighth consecutive year the 
Authority will be able to maintain the same discount level, providing consistency and budgeting 
predictability for the colleges and universities the Authority serves.  

Since the expense and income estimates and projections are made based on history and conversations with 
colleges and universities about their intent to issue bonds in the future, there is no certainty that the 
expenses and fee income or the interest income will be as stated. We recognize that fiscal year 2024 
expenses are higher than previous years with several unknown factors. We pledge to continue to operate in 
an efficient manner to keep operating expenses as low as possible.  

  



EXHIBIT1

MINNESOTA HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY

ANNUAL PERCENTAGE REDUCTION ON ALL FEES TO ACHIEVE TARGET TOTAL ASSET BALANCE
ACCRUAL BASIS

REVENUES 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

  Annual Admin Fees @ 0.125% (Existing Issues) 1,190,905              1,264,629              1,383,610              1,382,126              1,301,225              1,301,225              1,301,225              1,301,225                1,301,225                
  Annual Fees @ 0.125%  (Future Issues ‐ 1st year) 113,313                 113,313                 113,313                 113,313                    113,313                    

  Fee Credits (774,088)               (822,009)               (899,347)               (898,382)               (777,995)                (848,722)                (919,449)                (990,176)                  (837,675)                  
  Investment Earnings  47,905                   29,285                   17,053                   27,500                   35,000                   35,000                   35,000                   35,000                      35,000                      
    Unrealized Gain/(Loss) 40,198                   (27,000)                  (38,016)                  (5,000)                    1,000                     1,000                     1,000                     1,000                        1,000                        
    Total Revenues 504,920                 444,905                 463,301                 506,244                 672,542                 601,815                 531,088                 460,361                    612,862                    

EXPENSES

  Payroll, taxes & benefits 273,028                 276,347                 238,589                 310,420                 365,170                 365,170                 365,170                 365,170                    365,170                    
  Rent, Depreciation and Interest Expense* 47,957                   48,481                   50,237                   52,070                   54,500                   54,500                   54,500                   54,500                      54,500                      
  Legal, audit & fiscal consulting 69,756                   81,385                   70,264                   45,450                   77,550                   77,550                   77,550                   77,550                      77,550                      
  Other 102,340                 61,269                   63,133                   106,004                 115,640                 115,640                 115,640                 115,640                    115,640                    

    Total Expenses 493,081                 467,482                 422,223                 513,944                 612,860                 612,860                 612,860                 612,860                    612,860                    

  Increase/(Decrease) in Total Assets: 11,839                   (22,577)                  41,078                   (7,700)                    59,682            (11,045)          (81,772)          (152,499)          2                        

  Beginning Total Asset Balance: 2,080,622              2,092,460              2,069,883              2,110,961              2,103,261              2,103,261              2,103,261              2,103,261                2,103,261                
                

  Ending Total Asset Balance: 2,092,460              2,069,883              2,110,961              2,103,261              2,162,943      2,092,216      2,021,489      1,950,762        2,103,263        

  % Fee Reduction: 65% 65% 65% 65% 55% 60% 65% 70% 59.22%
  '% Fee Assessment ‐ Actual '20 ‐ '22; Est '23; Proj '24 0.0438% 0.0438% 0.0438% 0.0438% 0.0563% 0.0500% 0.0438% 0.0375% 0.0510%

*Change in accounting principal in FY2022
Color Code:  Actual

Estimated
Projected
Recommended
Target if zero increase

            FY 2024 ALTERNATIVES



�����������	���
� ��������
�����������������������������������

 ��!�	��"""#$����%&�#�'(���"����������!����������������$����%&��)��(*(�&��(+�(���,* �(�+����-.��/,* ����+!��0��1��02�%'30�0�%�4 ��-

5��� ��6789:;<=>?@A=�BC>DD@DE�FGHI@<=J�K=<E>DLMNO9PQ�RST�URUVWX=�B<YZ=JJ@YD>C�[=<A@G=J�\@<]̂�_@?X�<YIEXC̀�abcdef�K@CC@YD�@D�Fgh�̂M=C@A=<J�;Y]i<=X=DJ@A=KIJ@D=JJ�[YCI?@YDJ�FG<YJJ�?X=�j>?@YD�klmnopqr�spntu�tvu�wxyz�{u�|}|~��snqz�����z�����Q���P���T��Q��7���������Q���PPQP����T�������8�PQ���8��Q���:����Q�:��Q����PP�P�����T�8PQ�8��:�Q�����Q�:� Q���:Q�Q��¡P�Q�:�QP:�6����8���¢£ ¡6¤¥��P�:�Q��89P:���:8�7Q�8�Q���Q�:��Q���PP�P���8���9��PQ��¦��Q���P����7��P���§RR�PQ��Q���8�QQ���P:8�:�Q���Q�:��Q����PP�P���8��¦��Q���P���������Q���PQ���88:Q���P�Q̈�Q�:�8P������QP:��Q����Q��P���PP8��:��Q�8��Q��P�����P�Q�©ª«S¦�¬�Q�����Q���8�P�:88��Q�������Q�������8���8���Q�QP���Q�79��PQ��T���P�P������P��:Q��P8�8����8�9:�8P���P��9��P��:�̈��P���9��:T����89P:�P��Q����Q�T�79��PQ��������8��T��Q��:����P��Q�QP:T��P���8�Q¦��£��Q�:��Q����PP�P�����:�����Q��:8�7��P��8P�:�Q��Q���P����:Q���:8����Q�9���P�Q�QP��:�8P�Q����Q�QP�Q��P�:�Q�®���Q�:T¤������Q:Q��®���89�T�����8����Q�:��Q����PP�P�¦�£���Q��P������:Q������Q������������:�Q�������:���Q:�8P��8�P��7Q�8P�:����:�8P�����P�P����T�:Q��T��P��79��PQ����8�9:�8P��:8��8��8�Q��8��:�Q������QP:�T��8��9P�:�Q���P��:Q����Q�7Q��¦�¬�Q�����QP:̄�QP:��������8�������:�Q��Q��Q�:��9�:9������:��8��89��Q�Q�̄��8��P����Q�:��Q����PP�P��������¦¤�£°Q���Q�:�����Q��:8�7Q����:PQ��P����:����Q�:��Q����PP�P�T¤���������Q���PPQP����T���6T�����8���Q���P���¦�£6��89����������Q�8��Q�T��Q±�Q���������:���Q��:8��9������89�������8P�²�:8�7Q�����7�Q�8������P���8��89�����QP:��:��89���:�Q���QP:��Q79��PQ��T�8���P�³�:�8P����P���Q��8P������Q�����Q�¦��O8�P�P���Q:Q���P��������Q�:��Q����PP�P��:Q�����Q�:������Q�Q��:Q��9���8P��89����:��:8��Q���Q��8P�:���������8P¦��¡����Q̈��:Q���8��89�����QP:�T��P��¡����Q̈��:Q���8��89��:Q����:Q������Q��Q�Q��PQ�8����8�Q���8P����Q����Q����Q��Q���Q�Q��:8�89�����QP:�¦¤���£¡����Q̈��:Q��:8��QQ����:���Q�:��Q����PP�P���P���Q���P������P����8�������:8�Q:�Q�T¤������O8�P���P��:8PT�́89P�Q�T®�P���P�����:PQ��8�� Q�97��������:���µ�89�T���������:Q�����:�Q�Q̈��9���Q��P�Q�:�QP:�7�P��P�������8��8P�:�Q:��P���:�8P¦�£���Q��P������:Q������Q�79��:�����Q�:�����T��Q���P�����QP:��Q̈:��8���P�������Q��¦�¡:±��Q̈��:�P��:8�7Q����:�8��:�Q�8��P��:8�Q:�Q��8��:�Q�Q�:�8���P:��:���8���P�³�:�8P�¦¤��Q�:��Q����PP�P������8�Q��¶U©R���8�7�PQ�����Q:��9P�Q����P��Q�QP:��P�������Q�QP:����8�������SR��:�:Q���P��§S�89P:��Q�����8��©U·V©·UUT���:���8P:�P9Q�����P���8����8�:��:��89��89:�URUV¦���p̧¹xº�»�z¼º�½z�s¾¼yy�y¿���Q�:��Q����PP�P�T���������P��P�Q�QP�QP:��Q��:����P��Q�QP:������:��:���8���Q������P�P��������PP�P���Q���P�Q�:�QP:��P��Q�QP:�����8���T��Q:��Q�QP:����PP�P�T�Q�:�:Q����PP�P�T�:�9�:��Q����Q�T�:�̈����PP�P���P���������8����Q��Q����Q���8��P�����9��������Q������«R©¢�¥��P���P�:�:9:�8P������QP:�¦���Q�:��Q����PP�P������8�Q��¶U©R���8�7�PQ�����Q:��9P�Q���P��Q�QP:��P�������Q�QP:����8�������SR��:�:Q���P��§S��89P:��Q�����8��©U·V©·UU¦�



A look at trends in college 
consolidation since 2016 

We’re tracking major closings, mergers, acquisitions and other consolidation among public and 
private nonprofit institutions from 2016 to the present. 

 
Updated June 13, 2023 • By Higher Ed Dive Team 

The last few years have been tumultuous for many U.S. colleges. Pressure to lower 
tuition, stagnating state funding and a shrinking pool of high school graduates has 
strained many institutions’ bottom lines and questioned their long-term viability. Those 
pressures have caused some to close. 

For many still in operation, the coronavirus pandemic and its economic impact is 
adding a host of uncertainties to already tight operations. 

We’ve been tracking consolidation across higher education since the fall of 2018, looking 
back as far as 2016. Our goal was not to create a death watch but rather to give our 
readers a tool to show the scope of that activity and any patterns within it. To make 
those trends easier to detect, we updated our tracker with a map showing closings and  

In doing that, we also revised our list to omit certain consolidation activity among public 
institutions in which their footprints remained largely the same. Prior to this update, we 
removed for-profit colleges from our list; this was due to their differences in scale from 
private nonprofit and public institutions as well as the sometimes-fragmented nature of 
their closings. 

We hope you find this tool useful in understanding consolidation across higher ed. If 
you see something we missed, let us know by using this form. 

College closings and mergers by state 
 
Each state is colored by how many of its public and private nonprofit colleges have 
closed or merged, or have announced plans to, since 2016. 
 
Alabama (3) 

• Concordia College Alabama (2018) 
• Southeastern Bible College (2017) 
• Judson College (2021) ➔ 

  

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSeLtaaecHl-NM8XwZNn6g-zBEDTkjICovNt-zRKkU5bMHyx9A/viewform
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--judsoncollege


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
2 

California (8) 

• Holy Names University (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Presidio Graduate School (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Marymount California University (2022) ➔ 
• San Francisco Art Institute (2022) ➔ 
• Mills College (2022) ➔ 
• Claremont School of Theology (Ongoing) ➔ 
• Coleman University (2018) 
• Shepherd University (2017) 

Colorado (1) 

• Colorado Heights University (2017) 

Connecticut (2) 

• St. Vincent’s College (2018) 
• Bridgeport Hospital School of Nursing (2017) 

Delaware (1) 

• Wesley College (2021) ➔ 

Florida (1) 

• Jones College (2017) 

Iowa (1) 

• Iowa Wesleyan University (2023 - Planned) ➔ 

Illinois (7) 

• St. Augustine College (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Lincoln College (2022) ➔ 
• MacMurray College (2020) ➔ 
• Robert Morris University (2020) ➔ 
• Morthland College (2018) 
• Chicago ORT Technical Institute (2017) 
• Shimer College (2017) 

  

https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--holynamesuniversity
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--presidiograduateschool
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--marymountcaliforniauniversity
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--sanfranciscoartinstitute
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--millscollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--claremontschooloftheology
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--wesleycollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--iowawesleyanuniversity
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--staugustinecollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--lincolncollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--macmurraycollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--robertmorrisuniversity


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
3 

Indiana (5) 

• Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis (2024 - Planned) ➔ 
• Ancilla College (2021) ➔ 
• Valparaiso University Law School (2020) 
• Indiana Tech Law School (2017) 
• Saint Joseph’s College (2017) 

Kansas (1) 

• Wright Career College (2016) 

Kentucky (1) 

• St. Catharine College (2016) 

Massachusetts (9) 

• Pine Manor College (2022 - Expected) ➔ 
• Becker College (2021) ➔ 
• Newbury College (2019) 
• Atlantic Union College (2018) 
• Mount Ida College (2018) 
• Wheelock College (2018) 
• Episcopal Divinity School (2017) 
• School of the Museum of Fine Arts (2016) 
• The Boston Conservatory (2016) 

Maine (1) 

• Salt Institute for Documentary Studies (2016) 

Michigan (3) 

• Finlandia University (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Marygrove College (2019) 
• Miller College (2016) 

Minnesota (1) 

• Crossroads College (2016) 

  

https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--indianauniversitypurdueuniversityindianapolis
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--ancillacollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--pinemanorcollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--beckercollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--finlandiauniversity


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
4 

Missouri (2) 

• St. Louis Christian College (2022) ➔ 
• Wentworth Military Academy and College (2017) 

North Carolina (1) 

• John Wesley University (2018) 

Nebraska (2) 

• Nebraska Christian College (2020) ➔ 
• Grace University (2018) 

New Hampshire (1) 

• New Hampshire Institute of Art (2019) 

New Jersey (1) 

• Bloomfield College (2023 - Planned) ➔ 

Nevada (1) 

• Sierra Nevada University (Ongoing) ➔ 

New York (8) 

• Medaille University (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Cazenovia College (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• St. John’s University Staten Island campus (2024 - Planned) ➔ 
• Concordia College New York (2021) ➔ 
• College of New Rochelle (2019) 
• Bramson ORT College (2017) 
• Dowling College (2016) 
• Union Graduate College (2016) 

Ohio (4) 

• Chatfield College (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Urbana University (2020) ➔ 
• Cincinnati Christian University (2019) 
• Trinity Lutheran Seminary (2018) 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--stlouischristiancollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--nebraskachristiancollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--bloomfieldcollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--sierranevadauniversity
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--medailleuniversity
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--cazenoviacollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--stjohnsuniversitystatenislandcampus
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--concordiacollegenewyork
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--chatfieldcollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--urbanauniversity


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
5 

Oklahoma (1) 

• St. Gregory’s University (2017) 

Oregon (4) 

• Pacific Northwest College of Art (2021) ➔ 
• Concordia University - Portland (2020) ➔ 
• Oregon College of Art and Craft (2019) 
• Marylhurst University (2018) 

Pennsylvania (5) 

• Salus University (2024 - Planned) 
• Pennsylvania College of Health Sciences (2024 - Planned) ➔ 
• University of the Sciences (2022) ➔ 
• Abington Memorial Hospital Dixon School of Nursing (2017) 
• Philadelphia University (2017) 

South Dakota (2) 

• Presentation College (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Kilian Community College (2016) 

Tennessee (5) 

• Martin Methodist College (2021) ➔ 
• Memphis College of Art (2020) 
• Watkins College of Art (2020) ➔ 
• Hiwassee College (2019) 
• O’More College of Design (2018) 

Texas (1) 

• B. H. Carroll Theological Institute (2025 - Planned) ➔ 

Virginia (1) 

• Wave Leadership College (2022) ➔ 

  

https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--pacificnorthwestcollegeofart
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--concordiauniversityportland
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--pennsylvaniacollegeofhealthsciences
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--universityofthesciences
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--presentationcollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--martinmethodistcollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--watkinscollegeofart
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--bhcarrolltheologicalinstitute
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--waveleadershipcollege


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
6 

Vermont (5) 

• Marlboro College (2020) ➔ 
• College of St. Joseph (2019) 
• Green Mountain College (2019) 
• Southern Vermont College (2019) 
• Burlington College (2016) 

Washington (1) 

• Trinity Lutheran College (2016) 

Wisconsin (2) 

• Cardinal Stritch University (2023 - Planned) ➔ 
• Holy Family College (2020) ➔ 

West Virginia (1) 

• Ohio Valley University (2022) ➔ 

Below, we spotlight significant recent closures and consolidations. Sections are updated 
as new information is available. The timeline date reflects roughly when the initial news 
was announced. 

• Salus University 

STATE: Pennsylvania 

CLOSING DATE: Summer 2024 

Salus and Drexel universities, which are both located in Pennsylvania, announced 
in mid-June that they had formalized an agreement for the institutions to 
combine. The news came two months after Salus, a roughly 1,100-student 
graduate health science institution, said it was looking to merge with Drexel, a 
top research institution. 
 
Drexel will absorb Salus’ graduate degree programs, including those in audiology, 
optometry and occupational therapy, according to the announcement. 

• Medaille University 

STATE: New York 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--marlborocollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--cardinalstritchuniversity
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--holyfamilycollege
https://www.highereddive.com/news/how-many-colleges-and-universities-have-closed-since-2016/539379/?utm_source=Sailthru&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=Issue:%202023-06-15%20Higher%20Ed%20Dive%20%5Bissue:51352%5D&utm_term=Higher%20Ed%20Dive#timeline__item--ohiovalleyuniversity
https://drexel.edu/news/archive/2023/June/Salus-merger-agreement-ceremony
https://drexel.edu/news/archive/2023/June/Salus-merger-agreement-ceremony
https://www.highereddive.com/news/salus-university-graduate-health-science-institution-looks-to-join-with-d/647955/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
7 

CLOSING DATE: August 2023 

Medaille University, a small institution in upstate New York, decided to shutter 
just days after its plans to be acquired by nearby Trocaire College fell through. 
Medaille’s interim president, Lori Quigley, attributed the closure to growing 
financial difficulties, including declining enrollment, and outstanding 
liabilities. Read more ➔ 

• St. Augustine College 

STATE: Illinois 

CLOSING DATE: End Of 2023 

Lewis University, a Catholic institution, will take over St. Augustine College, 
reportedly the first bilingual institution in the Midwest. Neither institution cited 
a financial reason for the merger, but St. Augustine’s enrollment has continually 
dropped over the last decade. Read more ➔ 

• Cardinal Stritch University 

STATE: Wisconsin 

CLOSING DATE: May 2023 

Cardinal Stritch University said it will close in May after its enrollment fell 
precipitously and it failed to bounce back financially amid the pandemic, 
according to its president. The Roman Catholic institution is in the process of 
establishing transfer programs with local colleges. Read more ➔ 

• Iowa Wesleyan University 

STATE: Iowa 

CLOSING DATE: May 2023 

Iowa Wesleyan University, which has for several years teetered on the edge of 
financial ruin, announced it would close after its academic year wraps up in May 
2023. The private liberal arts institution attributed the decision to inflation, 
shifting enrollment trends, a significant decline in donations, and the state’s 
Republican governor refusing to use a share of federal coronavirus aid money to 
sustain it. Read more ➔ 

• Finlandia University 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/medaille-university-to-close-amid-falling-enrollment-and-layoffs/650332/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/lewis-university-to-absorb-st-augustine-college/648602/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/cardinal-stritch-university-to-close-at-the-end-of-the-academic-year/647290/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/iowa-wesleyan-university-to-close-at-the-end-of-the-academic-year/646243/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
8 

STATE: Michigan 

CLOSING DATE: Summer 2023 

Finlandia University, located on the Upper Peninsula of Michigan, said it will 
not enroll any students in the 2023-24 academic year after struggling with a 
decline in the number of high school graduates, falling interest in attending 
college and an “unbearable debt load.” 
 
“The leadership team, the Board of Trustees and myself have left no stone 
unturned in an attempt to avoid this day,” President Timothy Pinnow wrote in a 
letter to students and employees. He added that the 126-year-old Finnish-
Lutheran institution should end operations with “grace and dignity.” 
 
Academic operations were scheduled to wind down after spring and summer 
sessions. Some administrative and maintenance operations were set to continue 
afterwards as needed. 
 
Finlandia had teach-out agreements in place with four institutions and was 
working on an arrangement with a fifth. Federal data shows that in 2021, the 
institution enrolled just 424 students, all undergraduates. 
 

• B. H. Carroll Theological Institute 

STATE: Texas 

CLOSING DATE: January 2025 

B. H. Carroll Theological Institute, located outside of Dallas, announced plans to 
become part of East Texas Baptist University, which is located some 170 miles to 
the east in Marshall. The theological school said it would immediately drop the 
term “institute” from its name. Once the merger is complete, it’s set to be known 
as B. H. Carroll Theological Seminary at East Texas Baptist University. 
 
The integration would make East Texas Baptist University a doctoral degree-
granting institution. The Southern Association of Colleges and Schools 
Commission on Colleges and the Association of Theological Schools still needed 
to review the agreement. East Texas Baptist University plans to retain B.H. 
Carroll’s full-time faculty. 
 
B.H. Carroll was founded in 2004 and does not participate in federal financial aid 
programs. East Texas Baptist University was founded in 1912 as the College of 
Marshall. 

https://www.finlandia.edu/news/finlandia-university-will-not-enroll-students-for-the-2023-2024-academic-year/
https://www.finlandia.edu/news/finlandia-university-will-not-enroll-students-for-the-2023-2024-academic-year/
https://www.finlandia.edu/about/teachout/businesspartners/
https://bhcarroll.edu/etbumerger/
https://bhcarroll.edu/admissions/funding-your-education/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
9 

• Pennsylvania College of Health Sciences 

STATE: Pennsylvania 

CLOSING DATE: January 2024 

Pennsylvania College of Health Sciences, in Lancaster, is set to be acquired by 
Saint Joseph’s University, in Philadelphia, in a deal set to close in 2024. It would 
be the second acquisition in as many years for Saint Joseph’s, a Jesuit institution 
that acquired University of the Sciences in 2022. Read more ➔ 

• Presentation College 

STATE: South Dakota 

CLOSING DATE: August 2023 

Presentation College leaders examined their options and decided that closing and 
teaching out students is “the most responsible way to steward students’ pathways 
to completing their degrees,” Sister Mary Thomas, president of the Catholic 
institution’s sponsoring order, said in a statement. Presentation faced falling 
enrollment in recent years and headwinds including a rural location that was 
hard for out-of-state students to reach. An online Bachelor of Science in nursing 
program that Presentation operated will continue at St. Ambrose University, in 
Iowa. Read more ➔ 

• Holy Names University 

STATE: California 

CLOSING DATE: May 2023 

Holy Names University, a Catholic institution in Oakland, announced it would 
close after a year of searching failed to land it a merger partner. The university 
was trying to build a stable future under a five-year plan that called for new 
investments and rising enrollment, but its student body cratered under pressures 
from the pandemic and economic challenges. Fall 2022 enrollment totaled 943, 
less than two-thirds as many students as called for by the strategic plan. Read 
more ➔ 

• Cazenovia College 

STATE: New York 

CLOSING DATE: Spring 2023 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/saint-josephs-pennsylvania-college-of-health-sciences-acquisition/640693/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/presentation-college-south-dakota-closing/640665/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/holy-names-university-closing-may-no-merger/639212/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/holy-names-university-closing-may-no-merger/639212/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
10 

Cazenovia College, a private nonprofit institution outside of Syracuse, cited 
business issues made worse by the COVID-19 pandemic and high inflation as 
reasons to close after the spring 2023 semester. The pandemic hurt recruitment 
and fundraising while also requiring investments in technology and safety, it said. 
Enrollment fell by about 40% since peaking at almost 1,000 students in 2014. 
And a tumultuous bond market made it hard to refinance $25 million in debt, 
which the college defaulted on in September. Read more ➔ 

• Presidio Graduate School 

STATE: California 

CLOSING DATE: June 2023 

University of Redlands, a nonprofit based in Southern California, announced 
plans to acquire Presidio Graduate School, a nonprofit that operates hybrid 
programs in the San Francisco area. The move comes after Presidio 
determined “the alternative to the partnership is the full closure of the school.” 
Presidio will move to a Marin County campus northwest of San Francisco that 
University of Redlands acquired in 2019 along with San Francisco Theological 
Seminary. Read more ➔ 

• Bloomfield College 

STATE: New Jersey 

CLOSING DATE: June 30, 2023 

Montclair State University is set to acquire Bloomfield College by the end of June 
2023 after the two institutions discussed a merger for months. Montclair State, a 
public institution about 6 miles away from the nonprofit Bloomfield’s campus, 
stepped in after Bloomfield issued a public plea for help. 
 
Bloomfield counts itself as New Jersey’s only four-year college recognized 
simultaneously as a predominantly Black institution, Hispanic-serving 
institution, and minority-serving institution. But enrollment of the students it 
serves was hit hard by the pandemic, exacerbating already existing downward 
enrollment trends, its leaders said. 
 
Plans call for it to become known as Bloomfield College of Montclair State 
University. 
 
Read more ➔ 

• Chatfield College 

https://www.cazenovia.edu/news/cazenovia-college-permanently-close-after-spring-semester
https://www.highereddive.com/news/cazenovia-college-defaults-on-25m-bond-payment-raising-concerns-about-its/634298/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/cazenovia-college-in-new-york-to-shut-down-after-spring-2023-semester/638255/
https://www.presidio.edu/redlands/
https://www.presidio.edu/redlands/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/university-of-redlands-acquiring-Presidio-Graduate-School/638846/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/montclair-state-to-acquire-bloomfield-college-next-summer/635159/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
11 

STATE: Ohio 

CLOSING DATE: January 1, 2023 

Chatfield College leaders announced plans to cease operations as a two-year 
Catholic institution and convert to a nonprofit organization focused on boosting 
degree attainment. 
 
The college operated campuses in Cincinnati and to the city’s east. It faced 
dwindling enrollment and little hope of reversing trends because of challenging 
projections for the number of future high school graduates. 
 
Making the change at the end of 2022 offered the best chance to save resources in 
order to support students in new ways, according to President Robert 
Elmore. Read more ➔ 

• St. John’s University Staten Island campus 

STATE: New York 

CLOSING DATE: Spring 2024 

St. John’s University said it could not stem declining enrollment at its Staten 
Island campus, which plummeted from more than 2,300 undergraduate and 
graduate students in fall 2020 to fewer than 900 in fall 2021. Enrollment 
challenges were exacerbated by the coronavirus pandemic, officials said. Students 
were given the option to finish their degrees at the Catholic institution’s primary 
campus in Queens. Read more ➔ 

• Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis 

STATE: Indiana 

CLOSING DATE: July 1, 2024 

Indiana University and Purdue University announced plans to split up Indiana 
University-Purdue University Indianapolis in order to better meet a demand for 
educated workers and research in the state’s capital city. The bulk of operations 
and programs will go to Indiana University, which already owns and operates the 
IUPUI campus. Purdue plans to increase its presence in the economically 
important area. University leaders cast the change as an expansion of their 
academics and research in central Indiana, but it means the end of IUPUI, which 
was founded as a joint venture in 1969. Read more ➔ 

• San Francisco Art Institute 

https://chatfield.edu/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/ChatfieldEdgeAnnouncement_Final.pdf
https://chatfield.edu/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/ChatfieldEdgeAnnouncement_Final.pdf
https://www.highereddive.com/news/two-year-chatfield-college-to-close-transition-to-student-support-nonprofi/631740/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/st-johns-university-to-close-staten-island-campus-in-spring-2024/629675/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/indiana-university-purdue-university-lay-plans-to-split-iupui-in-2-years/629721/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
12 

STATE: California 

CLOSING DATE: July 15, 2022 

The University of San Francisco initially signed a letter of intent in January 2022 
with the San Francisco Art Institute that called for the Jesuit university to acquire 
the fine arts school’s assets and integrate its undergraduate and graduate 
programs. 
 
However, the U of San Francisco said in July 2022 that issues arose in cementing 
the deal, including the institute’s poor enrollment and financial projections, as 
well as concerns about its compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and delays in property maintenance. 
 
The institute said it would continue on as a nonprofit foundation to preserve its 
history and archives, which contain information about American arts education 
and culture from the 19th through the 21st centuries. 
 
Read more ➔ 

• Wave Leadership College 

STATE: Virginia 

CLOSING DATE: June 29, 2022 

Falling enrollment and pressure from the coronavirus pandemic prompted Wave 
Leadership College of Virginia Beach to close immediately at the end of June 
2022, the chair of its board of directors said in statements posted on its website. 
The small two-year Christian college, which enrolled several dozen people, 
encouraged students to transfer to nearby Regent University. Read more ➔ 

• Marymount California University 

STATE: California 

CLOSING DATE: August 31, 2022 

Marymount California University reached an agreement to merge into Saint Leo 
University, another Catholic institution located in Florida, only to have that deal 
fall apart shortly after Saint Leo’s accreditor declined to approve it in December 
2021 over concerns about finances. After the merger’s scuttling was announced, 
Marymount California President Brian Marcotte initially expressed hope for the 
institution’s future. But the university said days later it would close due to 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/san-francisco-art-institute-shuts-down-after-merger-collapses/627448/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/wave-leadership-college-a-nonprofit-religious-institution-closes/627066/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
13 

declining enrollment, rising operating costs and stresses stemming from the 
coronavirus pandemic. Read more ➔ 

• Lincoln College 

STATE: Illinois 

CLOSING DATE: May 13, 2022 

The 157-year-old Lincoln College, a private nonprofit predominantly Black 
institution, announced plans in March 2022 to shut down less than two months 
later. The coronavirus pandemic squeezed the college between high technology 
costs and students opting out of attending, then a December 2021 cyberattack 
took key systems offline. When the college was able to run enrollment projections 
in March 2022, they showed it couldn’t continue past spring without a partner or 
major donation. Read more ➔ 

• Ohio Valley University 

STATE: West Virginia 

CLOSING DATE: December 15, 2021 

The president of Ohio Valley University, a small Christian college, alerted the 
West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission in December 2021 that the 
institution would be closing and would not offer classes in the spring term. The 
decision affected roughly 200 students. 
 
President Michael Ross cited an “extremely difficult financial situation” in his 
letter. Ohio Valley had faced years of mounting budgetary and enrollment issues 
that had landed it on probation with its accreditor, the Higher Learning 
Commission, in 2020. An HLC spokesperson said the agency was working with 
the state’s higher education commission and the U.S. Department of Education to 
help students affected by the closure. 
 

• Mills College 

STATE: California 

CLOSING DATE: July 1, 2022 

The governing board of Mills College approved an agreement in September for 
the 169-year-old liberal arts school to be acquired by Boston-based Northeastern 
University. The deal means Mills will cease operating as a women’s institution, 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/marymount-california-university-to-close-permanently-following-merger-attem/622630/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/lincoln-college-a-predominantly-black-institution-to-close-in-may/621364/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/ohio-valley-university-will-close-before-spring-term/611221/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
14 

whose numbers have shrunk in the U.S. over time. 
 
That operating model and the school’s finances are no longer viable, Mills 
President Elizabeth Hillman said in a September interview. 
 
Mills students who complete their degrees before the end of June 2022 will 
receive a diploma from the college. Those who complete their studies after that 
date will earn a degree from “Mills College at Northeastern University.” 
 

• St. Louis Christian College 

STATE: Missouri 

CLOSING DATE: May 31, 2022 

St. Louis Christian College, a very small institution that had experienced 
enrollment challenges in recent years, merged into Central Christian College of 
the Bible, a similar institution in Missouri, under a deal that received initial 
approval in October 2021 — about a month after they started discussing the deal 
publicly. St. Louis Christian left its St. Louis-area campus and ended its last 
academic year in May 2022, although the transaction was still moving through 
necessary legal steps after that. Central Christian College of the Bible took on 
many of the shuttered institution’s students and employees. Read more ➔ 

• Sierra Nevada University 

STATE: Nevada 

CLOSING DATE: Ongoing 

The Nevada System of Higher Education’s governing board approved a 
memorandum of agreement in late July that would merge Sierra Nevada 
University, a private institution, into the public University of Nevada, Reno. The 
private university’s board announced earlier that month that it had approved the 
agreement. 
 
The colleges emphasized in a joint announcement that they will carry out a 
“thoughtful integration.” 
 
Sierra Nevada’s students will continue to study on the private university’s campus 
during the upcoming academic year. The university’s programs and operations 
will be gradually merged into the University of Nevada, Reno. 
 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/mills-college-trustees-finalize-merger-with-northeastern-after-court-order/606631/
https://cccb.edu/merger/
https://christianstandard.com/2021/09/cccb-and-slcc-in-merger-discussions/
https://christianstandard.com/2021/09/cccb-and-slcc-in-merger-discussions/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/meet-a-president-guiding-the-merger-of-2-missouri-religious-colleges/629463/
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://www.sierranevada.edu/nv-board-regents-approves-plan-snu-join-unr/&sa=D&source=editors&ust=1627507812384000&usg=AOvVaw2ggl054dO7hiFeP5X0Vv33
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://www.sierranevada.edu/nv-board-regents-approves-plan-snu-join-unr/&sa=D&source=editors&ust=1627507812384000&usg=AOvVaw2ggl054dO7hiFeP5X0Vv33
https://www.sierranevada.edu/snu-to-join-unr-family/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
15 

• University of the Sciences 

STATE: Pennsylvania 

CLOSING DATE: June 1, 2022 

University of the Sciences in June 2021 announced an agreement to merge into 
Saint Joseph’s University in a deal keeping both institutions’ Philadelphia 
campuses operating under Saint Joseph’s name. University of the Sciences had 
been seeking a partner in the face of demographic challenges and high fixed 
costs, said its president at the time, Paul Katz. 
 
In March 2022, the accreditor for the two private nonprofit institutions approved 
the acquisition. It became official June 1 of the same year. Read more ➔ 

• Judson College 

STATE: Alabama 

CLOSING DATE: July 31, 2021 

Judson College closed at the end of the summer 2021 term. Officials at the 183-
year-old women’s college cited dwindling enrollment and the inability to raise 
significant new funds as part of the reason for the closure. Pandemic-related 
recruitment challenges and a creditor asking for repayment on a loan added 
further stress, the college said in a statement. 

• Becker College 

STATE: Massachusetts 

CLOSING Gateau. 31, 2021 

Becker College closed at the end of the 2020-21 academic year. Officials at the 
private nonprofit college said in a statement that they had been trying to stabilize 
the colleges’ finances for more than two years. Its website includes information 
about academic “pathways” with area institutions based on students’ degree 
programs. 

• Concordia College New York 

STATE: New York 

CLOSING Gateau. 31, 2021 

https://www.highereddive.com/news/2-philadelphia-universities-vote-for-merger-plan/601782/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/middle-states-accreditor-greenlights-3-pennsylvania-mergers/620479/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/middle-states-accreditor-greenlights-3-pennsylvania-mergers/620479/
https://www.highereddive.com/news/heres-how-saint-josephs-closed-its-university-of-the-sciences-acquisition/624787/
https://www.alabamanews.net/2021/07/30/judson-college-in-marion-ends-academic-programs/
https://www.judson.edu/news/judson-college-board-of-trustees-vote-to-close-183-year-old-institution/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
16 

Concordia College New York stopped offering classes after August 2021, months 
after officials announced shutdown plans in late January. Neighboring Iona 
College will purchase Concordia’s campus and teach out its students. Concordia 
officials said in a statement that the pandemic “accelerated” the school’s financial 
difficulties. 

• Pacific Northwest College of Art 

STATE: Oregon 

CLOSING DATE: July 1, 2021 

The Pacific Northwest College of Art, in Portland, Oregon, finalized its 
merger into Willamette University, located about an hour’s drive south. The art 
school is now an independent college within Willamette, keeping its name, 
faculty and campus. 
 
The merger follows several years of discussion between the two institutions, The 
Oregonian reported. The publication noted that, according to Willamette’s 
president, “no money will change hands.” Pacific Northwest College of Art has 
struggled financially, particularly in recent months. It previously tried to 
merge with the Oregon College of Art and Craft. 

• Martin Methodist College 

STATE: Tennessee 

CLOSING DATE: July 1, 2021 

The University of Tennessee System’s governing board voted in June 2021 to 
acquire the assets of Martin Methodist College, which has been renamed the 
University of Tennessee Southern. 
 
The 151-year-old private university is the first addition to the UT System in 50 
years. The board voted to appoint Martin Methodist’s president as the chancellor 
of the new institution. 
 

• Ancilla College 

STATE: Indiana 

CLOSING DATE: July 1, 2021 

https://www.concordia-ny.edu/about/news/1701180/concordia-college-new-york-to-close
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://willamette.edu/news/library/2021/06/pacific-northwest-college-art-merger-complete.html&sa=D&source=editors&ust=1625179199739000&usg=AOvVaw2ChyiPLroa5YMCEZzj_rss
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://willamette.edu/news/library/2021/06/pacific-northwest-college-art-merger-complete.html&sa=D&source=editors&ust=1625179199739000&usg=AOvVaw2ChyiPLroa5YMCEZzj_rss
https://www.oregonlive.com/education/2020/09/willamette-to-merge-with-struggling-pacific-northwest-college-of-art.html
https://www.oregonlive.com/education/2020/09/willamette-to-merge-with-struggling-pacific-northwest-college-of-art.html
https://www.opb.org/news/article/pnca-ocac-merger-art-school-portland/
https://www.opb.org/news/article/pnca-ocac-merger-art-school-portland/
https://news.tennessee.edu/2021/06/25/board-of-trustees-votes-to-acquire-martin-methodist-college/


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
17 

Marian University, a private Catholic institution in Indiana, completed its 
acquisition of Ancilla College, a private nonprofit two-year school, in July 2021. 
Marian officials saw the move as a way to expand its footprint into a more rural 
region of the state, the Indianapolis Business Journal reported. 

• Marlboro College 

STATE: Vermont 

CLOSING DATE: Fall 2020 

Emerson College, a private institution in Boston, acquired the academic 
programs, endowment and non-real estate assets of Marlboro College, a liberal 
arts school in Southern Vermont. Emerson also got $20.3 million, according to 
local media reports. The agreement created the Marlboro Institute for Liberal 
Arts and Interdisciplinary Studies at Emerson College. 
 
Marlboro’s 400-acre campus was sold to a national charter school network, 
Democracy Builders, which will create a hybrid college program, according to 
Marlboro officials. The sale caught some flak over allegations the new buyer used 
racist practices. Read more ➔ 

• Wesley College 

STATE: Delaware 

CLOSING DATE: July 1, 2021 

Delaware State University, a historically Black college, in July 2021 completed its 
acquisition of Wesley College, a private liberal arts school in Delaware. 
 
The university received $1 million from a foundation in late 2020 to help fund 
the acquisition. Delaware State took on the college’s liabilities instead of paying a 
purchase price, Inside Higher Ed reported. 

• Pine Manor College 

STATE: Massachusetts 

CLOSING DATE:2022 (Expected) 

Boston College is expected to take over nearby Pine Manor College in a two-year 
handoff that will let current and incoming students finish their studies on the 
original campus. The pair signed a memorandum of understanding outlining the 
plans in 2020. 

https://www.ibj.com/articles/as-colleges-retrench-marian-goes-on-offensive
https://berkeleybeacon.com/emerson-finalizes-marlboro-merger/
https://berkeleybeacon.com/emerson-finalizes-marlboro-merger/
https://www.marlboro.edu/community/news/what-is-next-for-marlboro/updates/?id=76
https://www.marlboro.edu/community/news/what-is-next-for-marlboro/updates/?id=76
https://berkeleybeacon.com/turmoil-over-racism-allegations-toward-marlboro-college-buyer-continues-after-emerson-finalizes-merger/
https://www.dropbox.com/s/rt3pwt7nznx4q5c/Seth%20Andrew%27s%20Legacy%20%26%20Its%20Impact%20on%20Marlboro%20College.pdf?dl=0
https://www.highereddive.com/news/emerson-college-explores-absorbing-small-liberal-arts-school/566793/
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://www.bizjournals.com/philadelphia/news/2021/07/02/delaware-state-university-completes-acquisition-we.html&sa=D&source=editors&ust=1625255856461000&usg=AOvVaw2PG8vFITOXPZ2KO76cmp2N
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://www.bizjournals.com/philadelphia/news/2021/07/02/delaware-state-university-completes-acquisition-we.html&sa=D&source=editors&ust=1625255856461000&usg=AOvVaw2PG8vFITOXPZ2KO76cmp2N
https://www.desu.edu/news/2020/12/longwood-foundation-awards-del-state-1m-toward-wesley-transition
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://www.insidehighered.com/news/2021/07/02/delaware-state-university-finalizes-acquisition-neighboring-wesley-college&sa=D&source=editors&ust=1625255953975000&usg=AOvVaw1mJz6iAFTjH9uuGFgj-TCg
https://www.bc.edu/bc-web/bcnews/campus-community/announcements/pine-manor-institutional-agreement.html


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
18 

• Holy Family College 

STATE: Wisconsin 

CLOSING DATE: Summer 2020 

Holy Family College, a Catholic institution in Wisconsin, ceased operations at the 
end of the summer 2020 term. Officials cited financial pressures made more 
challenging by the coronavirus pandemic. 

• Urbana University 

STATE: Ohio 

CLOSING DATE: Spring 2020 

Urbana University, a private liberal arts college near Cincinnati, closed at the end 
of the spring 2020 term. It is a branch of Franklin University, which took over its 
academics. Urbana officials said the coronavirus pandemic “added a level of 
stress and uncertainty” to the already-struggling institution’s future. 

• Nebraska Christian College 

STATE: Nebraska 

CLOSING DATE: Spring 2020 

Nebraska Christian College closed at the end of the spring semester. It merged 
with Hope International University in 2016. 

• MacMurray College 

STATE: Illinois 

CLOSING DATE: Spring 2020 

MacMurray College closed at the end of the spring 2020 semester. In a 
statement, college officials said the coronavirus pandemic and economic 
disruption were factors that “complicated” the school’s financial position but “are 
not the principal reasons” for closure. 

• Robert Morris University 

STATE: Illinois 

https://www.cincinnati.com/story/news/2020/04/22/urbana-university-ohio-closing-permanently-coronavirus/3002171001/
https://www.cincinnati.com/story/news/2020/04/22/urbana-university-ohio-closing-permanently-coronavirus/3002171001/
https://www.urbana.edu/closure/general-faqs
https://www.nechristian.edu/news/2020/4/2/hope-international-university-announces-nebraska-branch-campus-closure


Closed or Closing Higher Ed Ins�tu�ons 
Higher Ed Dive 
 
 

 
19 

CLOSING DATE: Spring 2020 

The Higher Learning Commission approved a joint application to make Robert 
Morris University Illinois a part of Roosevelt University. Robert Morris’s 
programs become the Robert Morris Experimental College at Roosevelt. 

• Concordia University - Portland 

STATE: Oregon 

CLOSING DATE: Spring 2020 

Concordia University - Portland closed at the end of the spring 2020 semester. 
School officials were criticized for how they informed donors and students of its 
financial position and its relationship with an online education provider. 

• Watkins College of Art 

STATE: Tennessee 

CLOSING DATE: Fall 2020 

Watkins College of Art merged with Belmont University in the fall of 2020. Two 
students and a faculty member tried to stop the merger but a judge said they 
didn’t have standing to do so. 

• Claremont School of Theology 

STATE: California 
CLOSING DATE: Ongoing 

The Claremont School of Theology, in California, is merging with Willamette 
University, in Oregon. In May 2019, both institutions’ boards approved the 
affiliation agreement. Claremont programs will gradually be moved to 
Oregon, according to school officials. The merger process is ongoing. 

https://www.roosevelt.edu/news-events/news/20200309-RU-RMU-Integration-Approval-Announcement
https://www.oregonlive.com/education/2020/02/concordia-universitys-online-vision-hid-grim-reality.html
https://www.belmont.edu/watkins/about/index.html
https://www.wkrn.com/news/judge-wont-halt-watkins-college-belmont-university-merger/
https://cst.edu/update-from-the-president/
https://willamette.edu/cst/partnership-updates/faqs/index.html#2


MN Higher Education Facilities Authority
Budget vs. Actuals: FY2023 Adjusted Budget - FY23 P&L

July 2022 - June 2023

Cash Basis  Monday, June 12, 2023 12:47 PM GMT-05:00   1/2

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET REMAINING % OF BUDGET % REMAINING

Income

4010 Annual Fee Income 1,298,463 1,382,126 -83,663 83,663 94.00 % 6.00 %

4020 Application Fee Income 2,000 2,000 0 0 100.00 % 0.00 %

Discounts given -839,426 -898,382 58,956 -58,956 93.00 % 7.00 %

Total Income $461,037 $485,744 $ -24,707 $24,707 95.00 % 5.00 %

GROSS PROFIT $461,037 $485,744 $ -24,707 $24,707 95.00 % 5.00 %

Expenses

6000 Stipends 1,050 2,000 -950 950 52.00 % 48.00 %

6001 Board Travel 1,564 2,800 -1,236 1,236 56.00 % 44.00 %

6002 Communications 10,069 11,125 -1,056 1,056 91.00 % 9.00 %

6003 Staff Travel 14,121 17,000 -2,879 2,879 83.00 % 17.00 %

6004 Office Rent 40,108 44,500 -4,392 4,392 90.00 % 10.00 %

6005 Office Supplies 345 500 -155 155 69.00 % 31.00 %

6006 Repairs 743 750 -7 7 99.00 % 1.00 %

6007 Printing Expense 745 750 -5 5 99.00 % 1.00 %

6008 Periodicals/Memberships 8,875 9,000 -125 125 99.00 % 1.00 %

6009 Fiscal Consultant Fees 0 0 0

6010 Audit Fees 19,950 19,950 0 0 100.00 % 0.00 %

6012 Legal Fees 12,544 25,500 -12,956 12,956 49.00 % 51.00 %

6013 Insurance Expense 1,849 -1,849 1,849 100.00 %

6015 Miscellaneous Expense 2,745 2,800 -55 55 98.00 % 2.00 %

6016 Bank Service Charges 1,944 2,350 -406 406 83.00 % 17.00 %

6017 Conference Expenses 29,005 29,000 5 -5 100.00 % -0.00 %

6018 Professional Development-Board 0 0 0

6020 Professional Development-STAFF 2,785 3,000 -215 215 93.00 % 7.00 %

6021 IT 14,359 15,750 -1,391 1,391 91.00 % 9.00 %

6023 Postage/Delivery Expense 89 250 -161 161 36.00 % 64.00 %

6100 Salaries 193,466 228,500 -35,034 35,034 85.00 % 15.00 %

6101 Fringe Benefits 69,776 81,500 -11,724 11,724 86.00 % 14.00 %

6104 Worker's Compensation 170 170 0 0 100.00 % 0.00 %

6107 Office Contract Work 90 250 -160 160 36.00 % 64.00 %

6200 Equipment Leases 6,543 7,080 -538 538 92.00 % 8.00 %

Total Expenses $431,086 $506,374 $ -75,289 $75,289 85.00 % 15.00 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $29,951 $ -20,630 $50,582 $ -50,582 -145.00 % 245.00 %

Other Income

4000 Interest Income 27,000 18,000 9,000 -9,000 150.00 % -50.00 %

4050 Unrealized Gain/Loss Adjustment on Sale 1,586 1,586 -1,586

Total Other Income $28,586 $18,000 $10,586 $ -10,586 159.00 % -59.00 %

Other Expenses

Other Miscellaneous Expense 59,000 -59,000 59,000 100.00 %

Total Other Expenses $0 $59,000 $ -59,000 $59,000 0% 100.00 %

NET OTHER INCOME $28,586 $ -41,000 $69,586 $ -69,586 -70.00 % 170.00 %

NET INCOME $58,537 $ -61,630 $120,167 $ -120,167 -95.00 % 195.00 %

51,059
(22,473)
7,478

51,059
with capitalized items




